
AGENDA

CORPORATE PARENTING PANEL

Tuesday, 8th December, 2015, at 1.00 pm Ask for: Theresa Grayell
Darent Room, Sessions House, County Hall, 
Maidstone

Telephone 03000 416172
Tea/Coffee will be available 15 minutes before the meeting 

Membership (15)

Conservative (5): Mrs A D Allen, MBE (Chairman), Mr R E Brookbank, Mrs P T Cole, 
Mr G Lymer and Mrs J Whittle

UKIP (2): Mrs Z Wiltshire (Vice-Chairman) and Mr B Neaves

Labour (1): Ms C J Cribbon

Liberal Democrat (1): Mr M J Vye

Co-opted Members 
(6):

 Mrs T Carpenter, Mr C Dowle, Ms S Dunstan, Mr S Griffiths, Ms C 
Moody and Ms B Taylor

UNRESTRICTED ITEMS
(During these items the meeting is likely to be open to the public)

Item 
No
The Chairman will assume that all Members will read the reports before attending the 
meeting.  Officers are asked to assume the same when introducing reports.

A.  PANEL BUSINESS
A1 Apologies and substitutes 

A2 Minutes of the meeting of this Panel held on 23 October 2015 (Pages 3 - 8)



A3 Minutes of the meeting of the Kent Corporate Parenting Group held on 23 
November 2015, and brief verbal update (Pages 9 - 42)

A4 Chairman's Announcements 

A5 Verbal Update from Our Children and Young People's Council (OCYPC) 

A6 Verbal Update by Cabinet Member 

B.  ITEMS FOR CONSIDERATION
B1 Views of Young People In Care 

B2 Regional Collaboration Meeting (Pages 43 - 46)

B3 Leading Improvements for Looked After Children assessment - LILAC (Pages 47 
- 68)

MOTION TO EXCLUDE PRESS AND PUBLIC FOR EXEMPT BUSINESS
That, under Section 100A of the Local Government ACT 1972, the press and 
public be excluded from the meeting for the following business on the grounds 
that it involves the likely disclosure of exempt information as defined in 
paragraph 1 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Act.

B4 Update on UASC Issues - UASC to talk about their experiences 

Peter Sass
Head of Democratic Services 
03000 416647

Monday, 30 November 2015

Please note that any background documents referred to in the accompanying papers 
maybe inspected by arrangement with the officer responsible for preparing the relevant 
report.



1

KENT COUNTY COUNCIL

CORPORATE PARENTING PANEL

MINUTES of a meeting of the Corporate Parenting Panel held in Swale 1, Sessions 
House, County Hall, Maidstone on Friday, 23 October 2015.

PRESENT: Mrs A D Allen, MBE (Chairman), Mrs Z Wiltshire (Vice-Chairman), 
Mr R E Brookbank, Mrs T Carpenter, Mrs P T Cole, Mr C Dowle, Mr G Lymer, 
Mr T A Maddison (Substitute for Ms C J Cribbon), Mrs C Moody, Mr B Neaves, 
Ms B Taylor and Mrs J Whittle

ALSO PRESENT: Mr G Williamson (Chair, Kent Foster Care Association)

IN ATTENDANCE: Mr P Segurola (Interim Director of Specialist Children's Services), 
Mr T Doran (Head Teacher of Looked After Children - VSK), Mrs S Skinner (Service 
Business Manager, Virtual School Kent) and Mrs A Hunter (Principal Democratic 
Services Officer)

103. Exclusion of the Press and Public for Exempt Business

Resolved that under Section 100A of the Local Government Act 1972 the press and 
public be excluded from the meeting for the following item of business on the grounds 
that it involved the likely disclosure of exempt information as defined in paragraphs 1 
and 2 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Act.

104. The Views of Young People in care (discussion item) 
(Item 1)

(1) The Chairman introduced the purpose of the discussion session, which was an 
opportunity for young people to express their views directly to both senior staff 
and corporate parents. 

 
(2) The session was attended by a number of young people representing Our 

Children and Young People’s Council (OCYPC), who were currently or had 
previously been in care, accompanied by Sarah Skinner (Service Business 
Manager, VSK) and Virtual School Kent (VSK) Apprentices Bella Taylor and 
Chris Dowle.

(3) Those around the table introduced themselves.

(4) Questions were raised about the transition of young people in care towards 
the independent management of their own budgets and personal finances, 
and the variations in advice and practice varied across the county as well as 
eligibility for supported lodgings allowances, savings and the operation of the 
“leaving care” grant 

(5) One young person said that his three most recent social workers had been 
newly qualified and needed to “refer to the book all the time” and that it had 
taken five months to get an answer about a bus pass.  



2

(6) The need for clear and consistent communication to foster carers and young 
people was identified to ensure that any allocated funding was either saved for 
or given to the young person.  The need to support newly qualified social 
workers and ensure they had a clear framework of guidance was also 
recognised. 

(7) Mrs Skinner said that some of the issues raised at today’s meeting could be 
reported to the next meetings of the Young Adults’ Council and to Our 
Children and Young People’s Council.

(8) Mrs Whittle (Deputy Cabinet Member for Specialist Children’s Services) asked 
about experiences in school and said a Select Committee had been 
established to review social mobility in grammar schools.  The experiences of 
school among the young people present varied and there was a discussion 
about who decided whether children in care should take the Kent Test or not.

(9) Mr Doran (Head Teacher - VSK) said that four years ago fewer than one in 
three children in care attained level 4 in reading, writing and maths and the 
figure was now one in every two.  

(10) The Chairman thanked the young people for attending and asked them to 
think about the issues they would like to raise the next time they attended a 
CPP meeting.

The meeting was opened to the press and public.

105. Apologies and Substitutes 

(1) Apologies for absence were received from Ms C J Cribbon, Mr S Griffiths, Mr 
P J Oakford (Cabinet Member for Specialist Children’s Services) and Mr M 
Vye.

(2) Mr T Maddison attended as substitute for Ms C J Cribbon. 

106. Kent Foster Carers' issues: Discussion led by Glenn Williamson, Chair of Kent 
Foster Care Association (KFCA) 
(Item B1)

(1) Glenn Williamson (Chair, Kent Foster Care Association) said that Mr Gurney 
(Interim Assistant Director for Corporate Parenting) had asked him to work 
with foster carers to review services to them and to consider a model for 
engagement between services and foster carers.  He said he had 12 detailed 
conversations with foster carers which gave a flavour of views but could not be 
considered to be representative of all views across the county.  He said the 
conversations showed that there were differences in levels of satisfaction 
across the county and identified some potential “quick wins” including 
improvements in communication, consistency in the interpretation of policy 
and improvements to administration so minutes of meetings were written and 
circulated in a more timely way.  The conversations had also shown that foster 
carers feel they are not always listened to when decisions are being made 
about children in care, morale was low in some areas and this was making 
engagement harder.  



3

(2) Ms Moody agreed that morale was very low in Thanet and that foster carers 
needed the support of the foster caring team especially during times of 
significant and frequent changes.  Mrs Carpenter said that strong and 
experienced social workers were needed to deal with children in care who 
were 16 years old or more.

(3) Mr Williamson said a conference on unaccompanied asylum seeking children 
held last week attended by 80 carers and a number of social workers and 
other professionals had worked well and had created an opportunity to discuss 
issues and challenges. 

(4) In response to questions and comments, Mr Segurola said carers were a 
critical part of the professional network, a more formal review of carers’ views 
would be worth doing; foster carers received formal training, young people in 
care currently contributed to such training and that while there had not been 
any cuts to budgets for fostering services there were inconsistencies in 
caseloads which might need to be re-balanced.  

(5) Mrs Skinner said that recent training that included foster carers, social workers 
independent reviewing officers had been well received and demonstrated an 
appetite and need for it.  

(6) Mr Segurola said that a survey would be conducted early in 2016 to gather the 
views of foster carers and that the training programme would be reviewed.

(7) The Chairman thanked Mr Williamson for his update and for leading the 
discussion.

107. Minutes of the meeting of this Panel held on 3 September 2015 
(Item A2)

Resolved that the minutes of the Panel meeting held on 3 September 2015 are 
correctly recorded and they be signed by the Chairman. 

108. Minutes of the meeting of the Kent Corporate Parenting Group held on 24 
September 2015, and brief verbal update 
(Item A3)

Resolved that the minutes of the Kent Corporate Parenting Group held on 24 
September 2015 be NOTED.

109. Chairman's Announcements 
(Item A4)

(1) The Chairman said Chris Dowle was leaving to go travelling.  She thanked him 
for his contribution and wished him well for the future.

(2) The Chairman said that she would attend a “Meet the Managers” Drop-In to be 
held at the Lighthouse, Gravesend on 29 October 2015.



4

110. Verbal Update from Our Children and Young People's Council (OCYPC) 
(Item A5)

(1) Mr Dowle and Mrs Skinner gave a verbal update as follows:
 Sophia Dunstan was back to work full time and doing a Level 3 

apprenticeship; 
 Amelia Kury had won the apprentice of the year award; 
 Jo Carpenter had received apprentice manager of the year; and Heidi 

Coombes and Kahleigh Jenner were now applying for jobs;
 Recruitment for  a new care leaver apprentice would be underway in the 

near future;
 It was intended to recruit to all vacancies;
 Efforts would be made to attract applications from children in care and all 

designated teachers and social workers had been emailed with 
information;

 Meetings of the North and West Children in Care Councils and the Young 
Adult Council were scheduled for the week commencing 26 October 2015;

 Efforts were being made to establish children in care councils in the south 
and east of the county, as well as a junior council;

 A range of activities including skiing, tobogganing, ice skating and creative 
days had been arranged for half term;

 Pledge cards to be given to every child coming into care had been printed 
and would be made available to all social workers and elected Members.

(2) In response to a request for an update about a trip being organised by Bella 
Taylor, Mrs Skinner said the facilities available were being considered and that 
it was possible that the Youth Service may be able to assist. 

(3) The verbal updates were NOTED 

111. Verbal Updates 
(Item A6)

(1) Mr Segurola (Interim Director of Specialist Children’s Services) gave a verbal 
update.  

(2) In relation to unaccompanied asylum seeking children (UASC) he said:

 There had been a slight reduction in the number of children arriving during 
the first two weeks in September but the numbers had escalated since; 

 There were now 963 UASC being looked after (having increased from 386 
in March 2015);

 The impact had been considerable and foster care agencies had been 
used to find suitable placements, however all of the available places had 
now been filled;

 Last week it had been impossible to place Kent children in foster care in 
Kent;

 26 locum social workers in four teams had been recruited to deal with the 
UASC and it was proving very difficult to recruit sufficient social workers to 
deal with the numbers arriving;



5

 Mr Carter (Leader of the Council) and Mr Ireland (Corporate Director of 
Social Care, Health and Wellbeing) had spoken with the Home Office and 
the Department for Education about the need for a dispersal scheme and a 
financial settlement to avoid an £8m shortfall in Kent.  A ministerial 
announcement was expected shortly.

(3) Mrs Whittle thanked all those staff involved in dealing with the UASC.

(4) In response to questions and comments, it was confirmed that local MPs 
received regularly briefings on the situation and that all possibilities for the 
recruitment of additional social workers and translators were being 
investigated.  

(5) Mr Segurola said that feedback from the Leading Improvements for Looked 
After Children (LILAC) assessment had not yet been received and would be 
reported to Members and to the Corporate Parenting Panel at the earliest 
opportunity. 

(6) Mr Segurola concluded his verbal update by saying that App-based 
technology for consultation was been considered and that Family Drug and 
Alcohol Courts initiative that had been trialled in London would become 
operational in Kent in December.  The purpose of the courts was to provide 
intensive support for families with drug or alcohol dependency that would 
result in either a step change for the families or a permanent placement for the 
children.

(7) The verbal updates were NOTED.

112. Independent Reviewing Officer Service Annual Report 2014/15 
(Item B2)

(1) Mrs Skinner introduced the report. She referred in particular to the key 
headlines set out on pages 27 and 28, the areas identified for improvement 
and the actions for 2015/16 set out on page 45.  She also said that the “Your 
Voice Matters Survey” referred to on page 35 was a one-off survey and was 
not conducted annually. 

(2) In response to questions, she undertook to clarify the information set out in the 
summary of findings on page 41. 

(3) Resolved that the information set out in the report be noted and that 
clarification in relation to the summary of findings be provided.

113. Head Teacher of Virtual School Kent (VSK) Annual Report 2014- 2015 
(Item B3)

(1) Mr Doran (Head Teacher - VSK) introduced the report which provided an 
overview of his impact and priorities.  He referred in particular to the Key 
Stage 1 and Key Stage 2 results which had been internally validated and were 
in line or better than the national average and had narrowed the gap in 
achievement between children in care and all Kent learners. He said the Key 



6

Stage 4 results had not yet been validated but at this time showed a 4% 
improvement on last year.

(2) Mr Doran drew the Panel’s attention to performance in relation to health 
assessments, participation and engagement, celebration events, buddying 
support, training and to the events and forums the VSK Participation team had 
attended. 

(3) In response to questions, he said the total amount of pupil premium available 
was set out in the overall budget but individual allocations were tailored to 
need; conversations with the DfE indicated that it was likely to continue; 
activities in participation and activity days were tailored to maximise interest 
and attendance; and that the size of venues and budget meant that these 
events could accommodate only children in care. 

(4) Resolved that the progress made be NOTED.

114. Kent Specialist Children's Services Performance Management Scorecards, 
August 2015 
(Item B4)

(1) Mr Segurola (Interim Director of Specialist Children’s Services) introduced the 
Performance Management Scorecards which set out performance data for 
Specialist Children’s Services.  He said that the number of unallocated cases 
numbered 130 for August, 126 of which related to UASC and all of them had 
been allocated by mid-September.  

(2) Mr Segurola drew the Panel’s attention to the KPI - “% of cases adoption 
agreed as plan by 2nd review, for those with agency decision” which had been 
rated “red” for August.  He said that for September the percentage was zero 
as cases that were being twin-tracked had been excluded and this provided a 
more accurate and realistic view of the position.

(3) He concluded by saying that, although the average caseload for fostering 
social workers was 18.8, there were inconsistencies across the county. 

(4) RESOLVED that the information set out in the scorecards be NOTED.



1

Kent Corporate Parenting Group
Minutes of the meeting held on 23rd November

Library, Oakwood House

Present: Apologies 
Philip Segurola – Director, Specialist Children’s 
Services

Rebecca Ransley – Interim Children and Young 
People’s Service Manager – South Kent 

Geoff Gurney – Assistant Director for Corporate 
Parenting

Sue Clifton – Service Manager, 18+

Martin Vye – Elected Member for Canterbury June Capuano – Clinical Manager for Children 
in Care Services

Joanne Rabbitte – Children & Young People’s 
Service Manager – West Kent
Sarah Whittaker – Children & Young People’s 
Service Manager – North Kent
Carrie Bill – Interim Children & Young People’s 
Service Manager – Canterbury/Swale
Anne Nerva – Children and Young People’s 
Service Manager – Thanet
Tom Stevenson – Service Manager for 
Safeguarding and QA 
Maureen Robinson – Manager, Management 
Information Unit
Tony Doran – Head Teacher, Virtual School 
Kent
Sarah Skinner – Service Manager, Virtual 
School Kent
Sue Mullin – Commissioning Support Manager, 
NHS Thanet Clinical Commissioning Group
Nancy Sayer – Designated Nurse for Looked 
After Children
Dr Noreen Ahmad-Bhatti – Designated Doctor, 
East Kent Hospitals Trust
Andy Heather – Principal Educational 
Psychologist
Nick Wilkinson – Assistant Head of Integrated 
Youth Services 
Gemma O’Grady – Participation Officer, Virtual 
School Kent
Latifia Siziba – Service Manager, 
Unaccompanied Asylum Seeking Children Team
Margaret Pike (Minutes)

Item 
No

General Overview of discussion, followed by decisions and actions in bold Actions



2

1. Welcome and Introductions

 Geoff Gurney welcomed everyone to the meeting and introductions made
2. UASC Service Update

 Latifa Siziba has been in post as Operational Service Manager for 2 
weeks and Jennifer Williams is the Strategic Service Manager

 There are 4 social work teams with an average of 6 social workers and 2 
Social Work Assistants per team, there are still some vacancies to be 
recruited to.  An admin team has also been pulled together so each team 
has an administrator attached to it

 The team has been formed quickly to respond to the backlog of cases

 Staff within the teams have the key languages that are spoken by the 
young people coming in which will help with the interpreting situation

 There are 248 young people placed in other local authorities, 113 of 
these are in Medway.  There has been no announcement yet from the 
Home Office regarding the dispersal system so other local authorities are 
still taking some young people on a voluntary basis

 A concern was raised that after the Paris attacks the French Police will 
have been pulled away from the camps in Calais so there may be an 
increase in the numbers coming to the UK

 More work needs to be done to embed the PREVENT strategy in the 
workforce for social workers dealing with radicalisation and possible 
terror threats.  Concern raised from Health as clinicians attend the 
reception centres  and there is a need for them to be confident in 
PREVENT

 What is working well – there is now a more structured team in place and 
an admin support team.  More reception centres although young people 
are staying longer in them, there is a strategy to move the young people 
out into supported lodgings on a weekly basis.  Communication with key 
partners is good but could be strengthened. 

 The average caseload for social workers in the team is 15

 What are we worried about – Missing young people and the need to be 
clearer on the missing process.  Dispersal of funds, need to make sure 
that money is being put onto ELA cards.  Legal disputes, there are a 
number of legal disputes that the team is having to respond to.  
Resources – still recruiting to the team to cope with the backlog.  

 What needs to happen – National dispersal arrangements need to be 
agreed by the Home Office.  Address the missing person’s protocol and 
budget issues as there isn’t a central budget.  Need to recruit more staff.  
Case progression needs to happen and the 28 day assessments.  The 
team has been split into an assessment team and a long term team.

 Action – Geoff Gurney to take away the messages that have been 
raised here and look at how communication could be improved GG



3

3. Minutes and Matters Arising 

 Page 2 - CAMHS – Liberi allows the recording of referrals to CAMHS but 
can’t measure timescales as we need a baseline and CAMHS can’t share 
their data.  Nancy Sayer is going to match CAMHS data with SCS data in 
the week before Christmas.  We are unable to track cases open to 
CAMHS due to a mismatch between the data.  Action – Nancy Sayer 
and Geoff Gurney to look into this

 Page 2 – Terms of Reference for Health Commissioners – Sue Mullin to 
update later in the meeting 

 Page 3 – Challenge Cards  on the agenda

 Page 3 – Business cards – the winning design was chosen over half 
term.  The winning design is with the Communications Team to draft

 Page 3 – There are actions listed against Paul Brightwell.  Action – Tom 
Stevenson will pick these up

 Page 6 - Audit feedback presented to the LAC Health Group as that was 
felt to be the better forum 

 Minutes agreed

NS/GG

TS

4. Update from Corporate Parenting Panel

 Draft LILAC report was presented and 30 minutes at the beginning of the 
meeting was given over for young people and the apprentices to have 
their say 

 As Kent is a big county it can be difficult to get a representative sample of 
young people and apprentices to attend.  Members of CPP attend 
Children in Care Council meetings  

 Foster Carers do sit on CPP and it was felt that it would be useful to invite 
the Chair from Foster Carers Association so that they could share any 
concerns 

 Geoff Gurney and Anne Allen attended a cross borders meeting with 
other authorities from the South East.  It was striking how Kent is doing 
better than most of the neighbouring authorities in terms of young people 
attending Corporate Parenting Panels.  Issues that were raised at this 
meeting included: the difficulty of getting members involved in corporate 
parenting and getting children and young people involved.  It was felt that 
it is always the same young people that come forward

5. LAC Health Commissioning Group Update

 The statutory guidance on promoting the health and well-being of looked 
after children was revised in March 2015 and replaces the 2009 guidance

 Nancy Sayer provides advice and guidance to 7 CCG’s and Medway

 The CCG’s lead on commissioning the health needs for all looked after 
children in Kent not just Kent children

 Some of the most vulnerable children are being placed outside of Kent 



4

and their needs are getting lost in the transfer

 The key areas of focus for the CCG’s are service redesign based on 
statutory pathway, health histories, UASC, designated doctors, adoption, 
OLA/POLA and IT solutions

 There is a strategic meeting on 23rd November and an operational group 
meeting in December to look at the pathways and it is important that 
there is a KCC representative.  Action – Sue Clifton to attend 
Operational Group

SC

6. Social Work Visiting Frequency

 Geoff Gurney produced a procedure in a nutshell guide in response to 
challenge from the young people that they don’t see their social worker 
enough and pulls together the key messages on frequency of statutory 
visits

 The nutshell guide is intended to be an aide memoire as to what the 
expectation is and what is good practice

 Legislation sets the pattern for visiting although it is considered good 
practice if the child or young person wants it or if it is required

 In terms of UASC we are not visiting as we should be due to the influx 
and the backlog of cases and the UASC team don’t have enough 
resource to do this 

 The regulation have lessened for long term placements and is consistent 
with good practice although it does depend on the care plan 

 There are a small number of children matched with permanent foster 
carers and 4 times a year is not enough.  Stable situations can evolve 
very quickly and it is difficult to get to know young people on 3 monthly 
visits

 Guidance was felt helpful to have and would be useful for induction 
packs.  The nutshell guidance will go on tri-x and was written for 
managers to give to social workers as a summary of what to do

 The challenge came from the young people and this needs to be 
feedback to them.  The group agreed that the guides should be agreed 
and circulated

7. LILAC Report

 The draft LILAC report has now been received and the final version won’t 
be too different once some factual inaccuracies have been amended 

 In 2014 National Voice came in and assessed the authority against 7 
standards of which 4 were achieved 

 Under the terms of the assessment National Voice can be invited back 
within agreed timescales to look at the ones that were not achieved 

 National Voice came back and re-assessed against the 3 unachieved 
standards and awarded 2 of these.  Kent now has 6 of the 7 petals



5

 The standard that was failed was staffing, this is looked at through the 
child’s eyes, children and young people were surveyed along with foster 
carers and staff

 The reasons why the staffing standard was not achieved include the need 
to involve more young people in forming of job descriptions, more 
involvement in training for staff on participation and engagement 
including on all staff induction programmes, staff to meet more young 
people and consider the views of young people in staff appraisals

 Once the final report has been received this will be circulated with the 
minutes and go to CPP

 The table on page 12 of the report was felt to be significant as several of 
the answers to the questions had not improved or had gone backwards 
since 2014

 A concern was raised over the overuse of apprentices and to ensure that 
there isn’t a blurring over the role in facilitating the voice of the young 
people

 2 groups of social workers met with the young people and the response 
was very different.  The 1st group were not directing responses to the 
young person leading the meeting whereas the 2nd group did

 Gemma O’Grady was introduced as the participation coordinator and her 
role is to look at how participation can be improved.  A lot of activity has 
taken place but has this been communicated and do the young people 
know?  

 Page 7 of the report shows that the service is improving.  Martin Vye has 
contacted the Chair of the Foster Carer’s Association to encourage young 
people to come to events and the council meetings.  In terms of staff 
appraisals the authority needs to look at good practice from elsewhere

 The Kent Police crime commissioner  is doing some work with young 
people, looking at those vulnerable young people who are victims and 
witnesses of crime 

 It was noted how few young people contribute to foster carer reviews and 
this needs to be improved.  The system works for newly qualified social 
workers as part of their portfolio this and the information can easily be 
obtained from the young people.  Some young people may not feel 
comfortable addressing their feedback directly with social workers  

 Thanks extended to all involved in the organisation and running of the 
LILAC assessment  

8. CIC Performance Scorecard
 Key highlights from the figures to end of September
 CiC reviews and participation figures have been affected by the UASC 
 Those looked after for at least 18 months who’ve had the same Social 

Worker for 12 months has increased 
 The education data will be slightly different with the statutory first release 

due in December.  Exclusions and absences won’t be the same as 



6

reported by the DfE as they take the information direction from schools 
and KCC works on data from Welfare Call 

 The outcomes Key Stage 2 at level 4 for Reading, Writing and Maths 2 
has improved 

 Health and wellbeing – initial health assessments are down, some of this 
will be UASC and some will be about consent issues

 Placement stability – this is the 1st time the report has included the 
proportion of planned moves in 66%  of cases the last move was planned 

 Adoption –timescales were exceeded but these were complex cases
 Care leavers – shown across national indicators of all young people that 

we should be in touch with; there are a large number of not knowns.  
Some of these will be related to UASC that still count against us until they 
are 2

 Staffing – IRO caseloads is being affected by the UASC situation.  
Caseloads currently around 90 but should be 70

 Health commissioners asked if they could share the scorecard.  Action – 
Maureen Robinson to amend the scorecard for CPP and circulate.  
This can then be shared by health commissioners

MR

9. YP Challenge Cards
 No further challenges cards were presented to this meeting but need to 

feedback to young people regarding the challenges already raised 
 Philip Segurola will be issuing his Christmas newsletter shortly and can 

update on the challenges.  Action – Geoff Gurney to take the lead for 
preparing the formal response 

 The concept for the challenge cards is popular 
 Internal audit have done a report on savings.  The focus of the report was 

aimed at making sure children and young people know what money they 
have got.  The biggest message from the report is that we don’t do 
enough to record the data.  Could there be a tab on Liberi?  There is a 
proposal going to Ads and Philip Segurola 

 Agenda planning – proposals on finance for young people for 
clothing/transport allowances.  What should be directly spent on young 
people so there is consistency across placements.  Should there be an 
age related allowance on clothing/pocket money 

 The statement from Share Foundation  received by MIU is for all children 
not  broken down by individual children  

GG

10. AOB
 None raised

11. Next Meetings

29th February 2016 at Oakwood House – 09.30-11:30
12th May 2016 at Oakwood House – 09.30-11:30
22nd August 2016 at Oakwood House – 09.30-11:30
27th October 2016 at Oakwood House – 09.30-11:30



Publication Date: 26 November 2015
SC SCS Management Information

Kent Corporate Parenting Group

Kent Specialist Children's Services

Quarter 2 2015/16 (v2)

Quarterly Report

Children in Care
Performance Report

Produced by



Produced by: SC SCS Management Information
Publication Date: 26/11/2015 KCPG CIC Indicator Report - 2015-16 Q2 Page 2 of 28

Guidance Notes

The aim of this indicator is to achieve the highest number/percentage possible.

The aim of this indicator is to achieve the lowest number/percentage possible.

The aim of this indicator is to stay close to the target that has been set.

A red rating indicates that the current performance is signficantly away from the target set.

An amber rating indicates that the current performance is close to the target set.

A green rating indicates that the current performance has met the target that has been set.

Children in Care Numerator

Unaccompanied Asylum Seeking Children Denominator

Becoming Looked After Special Educational Need

Other Local Authority Initial Health Assessment

Year to Date (April to March) Qualified Social Worker

Rolling 12 Months Independent Review Officer

Snapshot Placement Order

Annual Special Guardianship Order

Academic Year to Date (Sept to Aug) M Monthly Figure

http://kccbusiness/sites/FSCMI/SitePages/Contact%20Us.aspx 

A green arrow indicates that performance has improved this quarter when compared to last quarter. 
Depending on the polarity of the indicator, an improvement in performance could either be a 
reduction or increase in numbers/percentage.

Denom

Direction of Travel

RAG Ratings

No RAG Rating RAG ratings are not applied to activity based indicators. Also, if the denominator is 0 no RAG rating 
has been applied

Polarity

T

L

H

G

A

R

PLEASE NOTE: For Q2 we have been unable to report on number of CIC who are first time entrants into the Youth 
Justice System due to an ongoing technical issue with the YOS Reporting System.

R12 IRO

QSW

BLA

IHA

SEN

OLA

YTD

To access the child level data underpinning the figures in this report or to request reports and/or analysis as a one off 
please log a request through the SCS Performance Management site.

Many of the performance indicators on the scorecard are measured using a Year to Date (YTD) approach - April to 
the end of the current quarter. For the first few months, it is advisable to treat the results of these indicators with a little 
caution as they are often based on a small cohort of children and therefore the percentages can be easily skewed.   

SGO

PO

A

SS

Child Level Data and Ad hoc Requests

YTD Data

AC YTD

An amber arrow indicates that performance has remained the same as last quarter.

NumCIC

UASC

Key To Abbreviations

A red arrow indicates that performance has worsened this quarter when compared to last quarter. 
Depending on the polarity of the indicator, a worsening in performance could either be a reduction 
or increase in numbers/percentage.

http://kccbusiness/sites/FSCMI/SitePages/Contact Us.aspx


Cases which were reviewed within required timescales H SS 90.1% A 1,865 2,070 98% 99.4% 97.1%
Participation at Reviews H YTD 94.0% A 2,360 2,511 95% 95.5% 95.6%
Looked after for at least 18 months who've had the same SW for 12 months L SS 53.8% G 548 1,018 50% 46.9% 47.0%

CIC Per 10,000 population aged under 18 SS 67.2 2206    328,250 59.3 57.0
CIC with a Child Protection Plan SS 25 36 13
Number of OLA CIC placed in Kent L SS 1254 1226 1211
% becoming looked after within 24 months of previous episode L YTD 5.5% 47 857 8.5% 7.9%
% Open to Youth Offending Services L SS 1.8% 39 2,206 2.6% 2.6%
No. who are first time entrants into the Youth Justice System L YTD See note

% looked after continuously for 12 months with at least 1 fixed term exclusion L A 14.1% R 9.8% 15.2%
% persistently absent from school L A 6.5% R 4.7% 4.2%
% achieving level 4 in Reading at Key Stage 2 H A 65.0% A 68% 61%
% achieving level 4 in Writing at Key Stage 2 H A 59.0% G 59% 46%
% achieving level 4 in Maths at Key Stage 2 H A 57.0% A 61% 52%
% achieving 5+ A*-C at GCSE inc. Eng and Maths H A 13.0% A 14% 15%

No. permanently excluded L AC YTD 2 5 4
No. on a part-time timetable L M 16 63 57
% looked after continuously for 12 months with an SEN Statement L SS 18.4% 227 1,232 22.6%
% of PEP's within 6 month timescale H SS 46.4% 680 1,467
% of statutory school age CIC with no school recorded (Exc. UASC) L SS 5.6% 61 1083 4.6% 5.2%

% of Initial Health Assessment referrals made within 5 days H YTD 24.5% R 179 731 80% 57.1% 29.1%
% of Review Health assessments held within required timescale H SS 90.6% G 1,361 1,503 90% 91.1% 89.7%
% of Dental Checks held within required timescale H SS 91.5% G 1,375 1,503 90% 93.6% 89.0%

% of Initial Health Assessments taking place within 20 working days H YTD 14.6% 107 731 27.4% 29.5%
SDQ Average L YTD 14.0 6,495 464 13.3

Placement stability: 3 or more moves in the last 12 months L SS 9.6% A 211 2,206 9% 9.9% 9.6%
Placement stability: same placement for last 2 years H SS 73.5% G 415 565 70% 72.2% 72.7%
% in KCC Foster Care/Rel & Friends placements (Exc. UASC) H SS 86.4% G 1,025 1,186 85% 85.7% 84.9%
% in foster care placed within 20 miles from home (exc. UASC) H SS 81.4% G 1,123 1,380 80% 81.9% 82.3%
% in residential placements (P&V and KCC Residential) L SS 11.6% R 255 2,206 6% 10.3% 6.8%

% placed in other local authorities L SS 15.3% 337 2,206 10.5% 11.4%
% placed in non-related other local authority placements L SS 15.2% 336 2,206 10.3% 11.2%
No. of missing incidents lasting longer than 48 hrs L YTD 179
% of return interviews completed H YTD 82.5% 703 852

% of cases adoption agreed as plan by 2nd review, for those with an agency decision H YTD 68.1% R 32 47 86% 74.1% 68.2%
Ave. no of days between bla and moving in with adoptive family (for children adopted) L YTD 549.1 A 31848 58 426 504.0 504.0
Ave. no of days between court authority to place a child and the decision on a match L YTD 239.2 R 13873 58 121 200.6 209.5
% of Children leaving care who were adopted H YTD 11.2% A 58 517 13% 13.7% 19.7%

% of cases with a plan of twin / triple tracking, that remain so at or after the 3rd LAC Review L SS 28.9% 11 38 19.1% 26.3%
% where: 8 weeks from 'adoption being made the Care Plan' to 'Agency Decision to adopt' H YTD 60.6% 20 33 68.2% 63.8%
Ave days from: 'Agency Decision to adopt' to 'Placement Order being granted' H YTD 61.4 2826 46 58.5 70.5
% where: 6 mths from 'Agency Decision to adopt' to 'Panel recommendation to match' L YTD 80.0% 36 45 70.8% 42.3%
% 'Placed for Adoption' within 12 months of the 'Agency Decision to adopt' H YTD 69.0% 40 58 71.0% 78.7%
% who wait less than 14 mths between becoming Looked After and being Placed for Adoption H YTD 61.1% 91 149 56.3% 46.6%
% of sibling groups that were placed together H YTD 85.7% 6 7 66.7% 96.4%
% awaiting adoption L SS 1.6% 36 2206 2.2% 2.8%
% of Children leaving care who were adopted (exc. UASC) H YTD 15.8% 58 368 16.7% 25.9%
% Adopted aged 5 or over H YTD 3.7% 15 408 3.3% 4.5%
% Adopted aged 5 or over (exc. UASC) H YTD 5.8% 15 259 4.7% 6.8%
% Adopted from Black & Minority Ethnic backgrounds H YTD 2.3% 4 175 1.6% 4.4%
% Adopted from Black & Minority Ethnic backgrounds (exc. UASC) H YTD 12.9% 4 31 6.7% 16.0%
% Adopted who have a disability H YTD 4.8% 1 21 20.0% 11.1%
% who ceased to be Looked After who became subject to a SGO H YTD 5.0% 26 517 5.1% 5.9%
% who ceased to be Looked After who became subject to a SGO (exc. UASC) H YTD 7.1% 26 368 6.5% 7.6%
% for whom the permanence plan has changed away from Adoption L YTD 8.0% 13 162 4.3% 9.6%

Care Leavers in suitable accommodation H YTD 59.1% R 414 700 78% 45.3% 64.9%
Care leavers in employment, education or training H YTD 38.0% A 266 700 45% 30.7% 39.3%
% of Care Leavers we are in contact with H YTD 65.7% A 460 700 75% 55.7% 72.9%

% of caseholding posts filled by KCC Permanent QSW H SS 75.7% A 334.9 442.7 85% 75.4% 79.0%
Ave Caseloads of social workers in CIC Teams (District Teams Only) L SS 17.0 A 1,949 114.4 15 16.3 15.7
Ave Caseloads of IROs L SS 76.1 A 2,206 29 70 70.6 75.4

Indicator

Po
la

rit
y

Data 
Period

Latest Result and 
RAG Status

Num Denom

Scorecard

Target for 
15-16

Q1 2015/16 
Result

Outturn Result

Children: Lead - Geoff Gurney

Education: Lead - Tony Doran

Health & Wellbeing: Lead - Sarah Skinner

Placements: Lead - Geoff Gurney

Adoption: Lead - Geoff Gurney

Care Leavers: - Sue Clifton

Staffing: Philip Segurola



Produced by: Management Information Unit, KCC.  19/10/2015 Page 4 of 28

Scorecard - Impact of UASC Kent 1 Kent 1

monthly 150 150 150 150 150 150 150 150 150

Indicators Num Denom Num Denom

CHILDREN IN CARE - KENT
CIC Placement Stability: % with 3 or more placements in the last 12 months L SS 9.6% A 211 2206 9.0% 9.6% A 138 1435 +0.1%
CIC Placement Stability: % in same placement for last 2 years H SS 73.5% G 415 565 70.0% 73.3% G 412 562 -0.1%
% of CIC Foster Care in KCC Foster Care/Rel & Friends placements H SS 80.8% A 1157 1432 85.0% 86.4% G 1025 1186 +5.6%
% of CIC placed within 20 miles from home (Excludes UASC) H SS 81.4% G 1123 1380 80.0% 81.4% G 1123 1380 -
% of Children who participated at CIC Reviews H YTD 94.0% A 2360 2511 95.0% 96.0% G 1627 1694 +2.1%
% of CIC cases which were reviewed within required timescales H SS 90.1% A 1865 2070 98.0% 98.6% G 1370 1390 +8.5%
% of CIC cases where all Dental Checks were held within required timescale H SS 91.5% G 1375 1503 90.0% 92.7% G 1137 1227 +1.2%
% of CIC cases where all Health Assessments were held within required timescale H SS 90.6% G 1361 1503 90.0% 92.9% G 1140 1227 +2.4%
% of CIC for 18 mths and allocated to the same worker for the last 12 mths H SS 53.8% G 548 1018 50.0% 56.9% G 543 955 +3.0%

CHILDREN IN CARE - NORTH KENT
CIC Placement Stability: % with 3 or more placements in the last 12 months L SS 14.6% R 42 287 9.0% 12.6% R 25 199 -2.1%
CIC Placement Stability: % in same placement for last 2 years H SS 73.9% G 51 69 70.0% 73.5% G 50 68 -0.4%
% of CIC Foster Care in KCC Foster Care/Rel & Friends placements H SS 80.0% A 152 190 85.0% 83.0% A 137 165 +3.0%
% of CIC placed within 20 miles from home (Excludes UASC) H SS 78.5% A 150 191 80.0% 78.5% A 150 191 -
% of Children who participated at CIC Reviews H YTD 93.0% A 332 357 95.0% 93.8% A 213 227 +0.8%
% of CIC cases which were reviewed within required timescales H SS 99.3% G 277 279 98.0% 99.5% G 190 191 +0.2%
% of CIC cases where all Dental Checks were held within required timescale H SS 95.8% G 227 237 90.0% 96.4% G 159 165 +0.6%
% of CIC cases where all Health Assessments were held within required timescale H SS 96.2% G 228 237 90.0% 99.4% G 164 165 +3.2%
% of CIC for 18 mths and allocated to the same worker for the last 12 mths H SS 53.1% G 77 145 50.0% 60.0% G 75 125 +6.9%

CHILDREN IN CARE - EAST KENT
CIC Placement Stability: % with 3 or more placements in the last 12 months L SS 9.8% A 68 693 9.0% 9.6% A 53 554 -0.2%
CIC Placement Stability: % in same placement for last 2 years H SS 77.3% G 170 220 70.0% 77.1% G 168 218 -0.2%
% of CIC Foster Care in KCC Foster Care/Rel & Friends placements H SS 90.6% G 484 534 85.0% 92.6% G 439 474 +2.0%
% of CIC placed within 20 miles from home (Excludes UASC) H SS 89.7% G 481 536 80.0% 89.7% G 481 536 -
% of Children who participated at CIC Reviews H YTD 93.3% A 788 845 95.0% 96.4% G 646 670 +3.2%
% of CIC cases which were reviewed within required timescales H SS 97.2% A 666 685 98.0% 97.8% A 534 546 +0.6%
% of CIC cases where all Dental Checks were held within required timescale H SS 86.6% A 499 576 90.0% 87.8% A 418 476 +1.2%
% of CIC cases where all Health Assessments were held within required timescale H SS 87.3% A 503 576 90.0% 90.8% G 432 476 +3.4%
% of CIC for 18 mths and allocated to the same worker for the last 12 mths H SS 56.1% G 222 396 50.0% 59.1% G 220 372 +3.1%

CHILDREN IN CARE - SOUTH KENT
CIC Placement Stability: % with 3 or more placements in the last 12 months L SS 13.2% R 50 380 9.0% 10.6% A 32 302 -2.6%
CIC Placement Stability: % in same placement for last 2 years H SS 70.6% G 77 109 70.0% 70.6% G 77 109 0.0%
% of CIC Foster Care in KCC Foster Care/Rel & Friends placements H SS 88.5% G 253 286 85.0% 87.1% G 216 248 -1.4%
% of CIC placed within 20 miles from home (Excludes UASC) H SS 81.8% G 238 291 80.0% 81.8% G 238 291 -
% of Children who participated at CIC Reviews H YTD 96.5% G 468 485 95.0% 97.0% G 358 369 +0.5%
% of CIC cases which were reviewed within required timescales H SS 98.4% G 368 374 98.0% 98.6% G 292 296 +0.3%
% of CIC cases where all Dental Checks were held within required timescale H SS 97.8% G 316 323 90.0% 98.5% G 258 262 +0.6%
% of CIC cases where all Health Assessments were held within required timescale H SS 92.0% G 297 323 90.0% 91.2% G 239 262 -0.7%
% of CIC for 18 mths and allocated to the same worker for the last 12 mths H SS 58.4% G 118 202 50.0% 60.9% G 117 192 +2.5%

CHILDREN IN CARE - WEST KENT
CIC Placement Stability: % with 3 or more placements in the last 12 months L SS 10.6% A 38 359 9.0% 9.4% A 26 276 -1.2%
CIC Placement Stability: % in same placement for last 2 years H SS 68.0% A 83 122 70.0% 68.0% A 83 122 0.0%
% of CIC Foster Care in KCC Foster Care/Rel & Friends placements H SS 76.7% A 204 266 85.0% 80.0% A 188 235 +3.3%
% of CIC placed within 20 miles from home (Excludes UASC) H SS 73.1% A 190 260 80.0% 73.1% A 190 260 -
% of Children who participated at CIC Reviews H YTD 95.1% G 366 385 95.0% 96.8% G 302 312 +1.7%
% of CIC cases which were reviewed within required timescales H SS 97.4% A 332 341 98.0% 99.2% G 256 258 +1.9%
% of CIC cases where all Dental Checks were held within required timescale H SS 89.9% A 248 276 90.0% 93.2% G 218 234 +3.3%
% of CIC cases where all Health Assessments were held within required timescale H SS 89.5% A 247 276 90.0% 94.0% G 220 234 +4.5%
% of CIC for 18 mths and allocated to the same worker for the last 12 mths H SS 44.4% A 87 196 50.0% 46.5% A 87 187 +2.1%

CARE LEAVERS
% of Care Leavers that Kent is in touch with H YTD 65.7% A 460 700 75.0% 69.5% A 310 446 +3.8%
% of Care Leavers in Suitable Accommodation H YTD 59.1% R 414 700 78.0% 62.3% A 278 446 +3.2%
% of Care Leavers in Education, Employment or Training H YTD 38.0% A 266 700 45.0% 39.9% A 178 446 +1.9%

Variance 
with 
UASC  

excluded

INCLUDING UASC

Latest Result 
and RAG Status

Kent Specialist Children's Services Performance Management Scorecards

EXCLUDING UASC

Target for 
15/16

Po
la

rit
y

Data 
Period

Latest Result 
and RAG Status



Produced by: SC SCS Management Information
Publication Date: 26/11/2015 KCPG CIC Indicator Report - 2015-16 Q2 Page 5 of 28

Definition

Oct 14 Nov 14 Dec 14 Jan 15 Feb 15 Mar 15 Apr 15 May 15 Jun 15 Jul 15 Aug 15 Sep 15 Ave

+1.9% +0.9% +1.9% +2.2% +1.4% +1.0% +0.2% +0.1% +0.2% +3.4% +5.6% +8.5% +2.3%

CIC reviews outside of timescale by gender and age

205 out of 2,070 were reviewed out of timescale.

% CIC cases which were reviewed within required timescales

PID Reference K25
Current RAG Amber - 90.1%

The percentage of Children in Care cases which should have been reviewed during the year ending 
31 March that were reviewed in accordance with the appropriate timescales.  

Last 12 months5 Year trend graph (Oct 10 - Sep 15)

Commentary

% Difference between exc. 
and inc. UASC

Children
Geoff GurneyLead

Theme

Male 
181 
88% 

Female 
24 

12% 

50%

55%

60%

65%

70%

75%

80%

85%

90%

95%

100%

53 

128 

3 4 

4 

13 

0

20

40

60

80

100

120

140

160

0-4 Yrs 5-9 Yrs 10-15 Yrs 16 Yrs+

Male Female

86%

88%

90%

92%

94%

96%

98%

100%

RAG - Red Zone RAG - Amber Zone RAG - Green Zone Kent exc. UASC Kent inc. UASC



Produced by: SC SCS Management Information
Publication Date: 26/11/2015 KCPG CIC Indicator Report - 2015-16 Q2 Page 6 of 28

Definition

Oct 14 Nov 14 Dec 14 Jan 15 Feb 15 Mar 15 Apr 15 May 15 Jun 15 Jul 15 Aug 15 Sep 15 Ave

+1.8% +2.0% +2.0% +1.8% +1.9% +1.9% +1.8% +1.7% +1.9% +1.9% +2.0% +2.1% +1.9%

Participation at LAC Reviews by age and participation Since April

Age's of the children who did not participate in their LAC review since April

151 out of 2,511 children and young people did not communicate their views at review, or have their views communicated for 
them. More than half of all young people over 10 either attended their review, spoke for themselves or an advocate attended 
with them or acted on their behalf. An increasing number of children chaired their own review meeting. The figure indicates a 
slight downward trend and we continue to maintain a focus in ensuring that children and young people participate in their 
reviews.

0-4 Yrs 16+ Yrs10-15 Yrs5-9 Yrs

5 (56%)

9 (39%)

627 (39%)

71 (15%)

50 (21%)

5 (22%)

96 (6%)

18 (4%)

20 (8%)

2 (22%)

Lead Geoff Gurney
PID Reference K26

Commentary

Participation at Child In Care Reviews

Amber - 94.0%Current RAG

The number of Children in Care reviews where the children and young people communicated their 
views specifically as a percentage of the number of CIC reviews taken place in the year to date 
excluding participation code PN0 (where the child is under the age of four years old).

% Difference between exc. 
and inc. UASC

Theme Children

2 (22%)

7 (30%)

896 (55%)

183 (39%)

85 (35%)

Key - PN1 Child attended & spoke for self;     PN2 Child attended - advocate spoke;     PN3 Child attended - gave views non verbally;     
PN5 Child not attended, advocate briefed with views;     PN6 Child not attended,  views sent

5 Year trend graph (Oct 10 - Sep 15) Last 12 months

2 (9%)

3 (0%)

192 (41%)

87 (36%)

85%

87%

89%

91%

93%

95%

97%

99%

RAG - Red Zone RAG - Amber Zone RAG - Green Zone Kent exc. UASC Kent inc. UASC

50%
55%
60%
65%
70%
75%
80%
85%
90%
95%

100%

0% 

9% 

22% 

8% 

4% 

6% 

22% 

0% 

36% 

41% 

39% 

39% 

56% 

35% 

39% 

55% 

30% 

22% 

21% 

15% 

0% 20% 40% 60% 80% 100%

PN1

PN2

PN3

PN5

PN6

1 
5 4 3 

10 

27 

78 

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

70

80

90

0-4 Yrs 5-9 Yrs 10-15 Yrs 16+ Yrs

With a Disability

Without a Disability



Produced by: SC SCS Management Information
Publication Date: 26/11/2015 KCPG CIC Indicator Report - 2015-16 Q2 Page 7 of 28

Definition

Oct 14 Nov 14 Dec 14 Jan 15 Feb 15 Mar 15 Apr 15 May 15 Jun 15 Jul 15 Aug 15 Sep 15 Ave

+2.8% -0.4% +3.0% +3.0% +3.0% +3.1% +3.0%

Number of cases held not held for 12 months for those who have been LAC for 18 months or more split by age

Number and Percentage of cases held not held for 12 months for those who have been LAC for 18 months or more

This is a new indicator to reflect an ongoing commitment to ensuring that children in our care have a consistent 
social worker wherever possible. The work of the transformation programme has reduced the number of transfer 
points to promote a consistency of worker for children and young people. Performance continues to be affected by 
the challenge in recruiting qualified and experienced social work staff.

Commentary

CIC for at least 18 months who've had the same Social Worker for 12 months 
(Inc. UASC)

5 Year trend graph (Oct 10 - Sep 15) Last 12 months

% Difference between exc. 
and inc. UASC

Lead Geoff Gurney
PID Reference
Current RAG Green - 53.8%

Theme Children

20%
25%
30%
35%
40%
45%
50%
55%
60%
65%

RAG - Red Zone RAG - Amber Zone RAG - Green Zone Kent exc. UASC Kent inc. UASC

0%
10%
20%
30%
40%
50%
60%
70%
80%
90%

100%

10 

80 

195 185 

10 48 

0

50

100

150

200

250

0-4 Yrs 5-9 Yrs 10-15 Yrs 16+ Yrs

Exc. UASC
Inc. UASC

Maidstone AIT & FST 
2 

0% 

Tonbridge AIT & FST 
1 

0% 

North Kent CIC 
68 

15% 

East Kent Can-Swa CIC 
109 
23% 

East Kent Tha CIC 
65 

14% 

South Kent CIC 
84 

18% 

West Kent CIC 
106 
23% 

Disability EK 
29 
6% 

Disability WK 
6 

1% 



Produced by: SC SCS Management Information
Publication Date: 26/11/2015 KCPG CIC Indicator Report - 2015-16 Q2 Page 8 of 28

Definition

This data is sourced from the DFE LAIT tool.  2014 data will be available from December 2015

Definition

This data is sourced from the DFE LAIT tool.  2014 data will be available from April 2016
2014 has seen a reduction of our education welfare officer capacity. This coupled with the increase in UASC has led to the 
increase. Pupil premium plus grant is being used to work with schools to improve attendance.

Education
Lead Tony Doran Persistent absentees are defined as pupils who have missed 15% or more of school sessions through 

authorised or unauthorised absence.PID Reference
Current RAG Red - 6.5%

Commentary

Last 8 Years

Commentary

% of children looked after who are classed as persistent absentees

Theme

Last 8 Years

Reducing exclusions is a priority for the virtual school. Fixed term exclusions are difficult to monitor accurately as schools are not 
required to report fixed term exclusions more than once a year. In addition to this, the 62% reduction we have seen in 
permanent exclusions over the past 4 years has had a knock on effect of keeping fixed term exclusions high. Currently utilising 
pupil premium plus grant to work in areas of Kent to reduce fixed term exlusions.

% of Children who have been continuously looked after for twelve months 
with at least one fixed term exclusion from school

Theme Education
Lead Tony Doran This indicator shows the number of children who have been looked after for at least a year who have 

had at least one fixed term exclusion.  A fixed term exclusion refers to a pupil who is excluded from a 
school but remains on the register of that school because they are expected to return when the 
exclusion period ends.

PID Reference
Latest RAG Red - 14.1%

15.5% 

17.3% 17.2% 
18.1% 

16.3% 
15.2% 

14.1% 

8%

10%

12%

14%

16%

18%

20%

2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014

RAG - Green Zone RAG - Amber Zone RAG - Red Zone
Kent Latest Stat Neighbour Ave 10.0% Latest National Ave 9.8%

10.6% 
9.7% 9.4% 

7.7% 7.7% 

4.2% 

6.5% 

3%

5%

7%

9%

11%

2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014

RAG - Green Zone RAG - Amber Zone RAG - Red Zone
Kent Latest Stat Neighbour Ave 5.0% Latest National Ave 4.7%



Produced by: SC SCS Management Information
Publication Date: 26/11/2015 KCPG CIC Indicator Report - 2015-16 Q2 Page 9 of 28

Definition

Definition

Last 8 Years

Commentary
From 2006 to 2011 this indicator was KS2 English.  From 2012, this was split into reading, writing, grammar, punctuation and 
spelling
The virtual school is pleased with the improvement and to be performing above our statistical neighbours and are now in line 
with the national average.

Lead Tony Doran
PID Reference
Current RAG No RAG Set

Latest RAG No RAG Set

Last 8 Years

Commentary

% CIC reaching Level 4 in Writing at Key Stage 2

Theme Education

The virtual school is pleased with the continued improvement at key stage 2 but are committed to make the national average.

% CIC reaching Level 4 in Reading at Key Stage 2

Theme Education
Lead Tony Doran
PID Reference

38.0% 39.0% 

32.0% 

46.0% 46.0% 44.0% 46.0% 

59.0% 

20%

30%

40%

50%

60%

70%

2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014

RAG - Red Zone RAG - Amber Zone RAG - Green Zone

Kent Latest Stat Neighbour Ave - 54.4% Latest National Ave - 59.0%

50.0% 
53.0% 

46.0% 

54.0% 

61.0% 

65.0% 

40%

45%

50%

55%

60%

65%

70%

2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014

RAG - Red Zone RAG - Amber Zone RAG - Green Zone

Kent Latest Stat Neighbour - 62.9% Latest National - 68.0%



Produced by: SC SCS Management Information
Publication Date: 26/11/2015 KCPG CIC Indicator Report - 2015-16 Q2 Page 10 of 28

Definition

Definition

Last 8 Years

Commentary
The fall in attainment in 2014 was roughly in line with the national decline in attainment. It is important to note however, that 
there were significant assessment changes in 2013/14 which Ofqual highlighted 2014 outcomes would not be comparable with 
previous years. The UASC population was at 20% in this year group and significantly impacted on performance.

Lead Tony Doran
PID Reference
Current RAG No RAG Set

Latest RAG No RAG Set

Last 8 Years

Commentary

% CIC achieving 5+ A* to C at GCSE (inc. English & Maths)

Theme Education

The virtual school is pleased with the continued improvement in attainment in mathematics. It is positive to see that we are 
outperforming our statistical neighbours but remain committed to make or exceed the national average.

% CIC reaching Level 4 in Maths at Key Stage 2

Theme Education
Lead Tony Doran
PID Reference

8.5% 
9.5% 

6.2% 

11.0% 

15.3% 14.8% 
13.0% 

0%

5%

10%

15%

20%

2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014

RAG - Red Zone RAG - Amber Zone RAG - Green Zone Kent #N/A Latest National Ave - 14.4%

31.0% 32.0% 32.0% 

58.0% 

48.0% 
42.0% 

52.0% 
57.0% 

10%

20%

30%

40%

50%

60%

70%

2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014

RAG - Red Zone RAG - Amber Zone RAG - Green Zone

Kent Latest Stat Neighbour - 54.6% Latest National - 61.0%



Produced by: SC SCS Management Information
Publication Date: 26/11/2015 KCPG CIC Indicator Report - 2015-16 Q2 Page 11 of 28

Definition

Oct 14 Nov 14 Dec 14 Jan 15 Feb 15 Mar 15 Apr 15 May 15 Jun 15 Jul 15 Aug 15 Sep 15 Ave

+0.7% +1.0% +1.6% +1.4% +1.4% +1.2% +3.2% +3.0% +2.4% +2.5% +2.4% +2.4% +1.9%

Number of children who have not had their review health assessment within timescale by Age

Number of Refused Health Assessments since April by Age

5 Year trend graph (Oct 10 - Sep 15) Last 12 months

Monitoring of review health assessments (RHAs) takes place on a regular basis.  The service tries to provide a flexible 
service to encourage young people aged 16 & 17 to engage in this process but there continues to be some reluctance.  
The LAC Nursing service is currently working on ensuring the completion of health histories for young people as they 
approach adulthood and thus leaving care to ensure they have access to their health information irrespective of whether 
or not they have attended RHA’s.

Commentary

% of Review Health assessments held within required timescale

Theme Health & Wellbeing

% Difference between exc. 
and inc. UASC

Lead Sarah Skinner This indicator shows the percentage of Kent Children in Care who have been looked after for at least 
12 months at the end of the reporting period and had their annual health assessment.PID Reference K20

Current RAG Green - 90.6%

75%

80%

85%

90%

95%

100%

RAG - Red Zone RAG - Amber Zone RAG - Green Zone Kent exc. UASC Kent inc. UASC

0%
10%
20%
30%
40%
50%
60%
70%
80%
90%

100%

8 1 
22 

82 

2 

27 

0

20

40

60

80

100

120

0-4 Yrs 5-9 Yrs 10-15 Yrs 16+ Yrs

Children Currently Missing

Kent (exc. Missing)

10-15 Yrs 
22 

20% 16-17 Yrs 
90 

80% 



Produced by: SC SCS Management Information
Publication Date: 26/11/2015 KCPG CIC Indicator Report - 2015-16 Q2 Page 12 of 28

Definition

Oct 14 Nov 14 Dec 14 Jan 15 Feb 15 Mar 15 Apr 15 May 15 Jun 15 Jul 15 Aug 15 Sep 15 Ave

+0.3% +0.6% +0.7% +0.4% +0.8% +1.0% +0.0% +0.1% +0.8% +0.5% +0.7% +1.2% +0.6%

Number and percentage of children who have not had their dental checks within timescale by Age

Placement types of the 86 (67.2%) children aged 16+ who did not have their dental checks within timescale

Monitoring of dental checks takes place on a regular basis and carers are asked for the date of children’s last dental 
check when completing the SDQ form as well as in the health assessment.  Extra scrutiny is taking place of those 
children aged below 16 years of age to ensure annual dental checks are taking place and that this data is input on to 
Liberi.

Lead Sarah Skinner This indicator shows the percentage of Kent Children in Care who have been looked after for at least 
12 months at the end of the reporting period who had their teeth checked by a dentist.PID Reference K21

Commentary

5 Year trend graph (Oct 10 - Sep 15) Last 12 months

% Difference between exc. 
and inc. UASC

% of Dental Checks held within required timescale

Theme Health & Wellbeing

Current RAG Green - 91.5%

75%

80%

85%

90%

95%

100%

RAG - Red Zone RAG - Amber Zone RAG - Green Zone Kent exc. UASC Kent inc. UASC

0%
10%
20%
30%
40%
50%
60%
70%
80%
90%

100%

30 

22 

8 8 

3 3 

8 

0

5

10

15

20

25

30

35

Leaving Care KCC Foster Care KCC Residential IFA Placed with Parents P&V Relatives and Friends

0-4 Yrs 
1 

1% 

5-9 Yrs 
8 

6% 

10-15 Yrs 
33 

26% 

16-17 Yrs 
86 

67% 



Produced by: SC SCS Management Information
Publication Date: 26/11/2015 KCPG CIC Indicator Report - 2015-16 Q2 Page 13 of 28

Definition

Oct 14 Nov 14 Dec 14 Jan 15 Feb 15 Mar 15 Apr 15 May 15 Jun 15 Jul 15 Aug 15 Sep 15 Ave

+21.0% +14.1% -4.2% -18.2% -22.9% -4.4% +1.3% +4.4% -1.1%

Monitoring of referrals made for Initial Health Assessments (IHAs) within 5 working days is on going and is currently a high 
priority.  MIU has identified a specific officer to assist UASC to set up an administrative process to ensure that the IHA 
referrals go through promptly as soon as a young person comes into our care.  Communication with the responsible SCS 
Service Managers for the other children and young people entering care is taking place on a regular basis to try to improve 
the referral process and the recording on to Liberi.

Commentary

Of those Children in Care (CIC) becoming looked after (BLA) in a period, the percentage of those 
whose referral to Health for their Initial Health Assessment (IHA) is made by Kent Specialist 
Children’s Services (SCS) within 5 working days of BLA date.

Number of children whose Initial Health Assessment Referral was requested more than 5 days after their period of care 
started by age and legal status

Number of children whose Initial Health Assessment Referral was requested more than 5 days after their period of care 
started by age

5 Year trend graph (Oct 10 - Sep 15) Last 12 months

% Difference between exc. 
and inc. UASC

% of Initial Health Assessments referrals made within 5 days

Theme Health & Wellbeing

Current RAG Red - 24.5%

Lead Sarah Skinner
PID Reference K27

0%
10%
20%
30%
40%
50%
60%
70%
80%
90%

100%

RAG - Red Zone RAG - Amber Zone RAG - Green Zone Kent exc. UASC Kent inc. UASC

0%
10%
20%
30%
40%
50%
60%
70%
80%
90%

100%

28 12 

148 

296 

32 21 

11 

4 

0
50

100
150
200
250
300
350

0-4Yrs 5-9Yrs 10-15Yrs 16+Yrs

In Care
Accommodated

0-4 Yrs 
60 

11% 

5-9 Yrs 
33 
6% 

10-15 Yrs 
159 
29% 

16+ yrs 
300 
54% 



Produced by: SC SCS Management Information
Publication Date: 26/11/2015 KCPG CIC Indicator Report - 2015-16 Q2 Page 14 of 28

Definition

Oct 14 Nov 14 Dec 14 Jan 15 Feb 15 Mar 15 Apr 15 May 15 Jun 15 Jul 15 Aug 15 Sep 15 Ave

-0.2% -0.1% -0.3% -1.0% -1.3% -1.3% -1.5% -1.3% -0.6% -0.3% -0.1% +0.1% -0.7%

There has been an increase in the number of children and young people over 10 who have more than 3 moves within a year.  130 
children had 3 placements, 45 had 4 placements and 36 had 5 or more placements. Figures for unaccompanied asylum seeking children 
will be affected by the practice of placing new arrivals in a reception centre for a period of 6 to 8 weeks whilst their needs are assessed 
and care plans put in place, before they are moved to supported accommodation.  Placement stability remains a priority and 
performance is tracked on the team operational dashboard (TOD).  There are new initiatives aimed at working with foster carers to 
enable them to support challenging adolescents.

Lead Geoff Gurney This indicator is an important measure of the stability of care that a child has experienced. On the 
whole stability is associated with better outcomes – placement instability was highlighted by the 
Social Exclusion Unit as a key barrier to improving educational outcomes.PID Reference K16

Commentary

5 Year trend graph (Oct 10 - Sep 15) Last 12 months

% Difference between exc. and 
inc. UASC

No. of Placements for children moving placements 3 or more times in 
the last 12 months child's age and by Planned / Unplanned move

No. of Placements for CIC with 3 or more placements in the last 12 
months as at September 2015 by Area and Planned / Unplanned move

Children in Care with 3 or more placements in the last 12 
months as at September 2015 by the number of placements

Ages of the children moving placements 3 or more times in the 
last 12 months

The question regarding planned/unplanned moves was added to the Placement Plan from June 2015

CIC Placement Stability: 3 or more moves in the last 12 months

Theme Placements

Current RAG Amber - 9.6%

4%

6%

8%

10%

12%

14%

RAG - Green Zone RAG - Amber Zone RAG - Red Zone
Kent inc. UASC Kent exc. UASC Latest Stat Neighbour Ave 11.4%
Latest National Ave 11.0%

4%
5%
6%
7%
8%
9%

10%
11%
12%
13%
14%

13 12 

62 51 

25 48 

0

20

40

60

80

100

120

0-4 Yrs 5-9 Yrs 10-15 Yrs 16-17 Yrs

Kent (exc. UASC)

UASC

130 

45 

26 

2 2 5 1 
0

20

40

60

80

100

120

140

32 
45 

32 32 34 

2 

16 

40 

15 14 7 

0

20

40

60

80

100

North Kent East Kent South Kent West Kent Asylum Disability
WK

Planned Move

Unplanned Move

13 11 

81 72 

4 3 

44 
41 

0

20

40

60

80

100

120

140

0-4 Yrs 5-9 Yrs 10-15 Yrs 16-17 Yrs

Planned Move

Unplanned Move



Produced by: SC SCS Management Information
Publication Date: 26/11/2015 KCPG CIC Indicator Report - 2015-16 Q2 Page 15 of 28

Definition

Oct 14 Nov 14 Dec 14 Jan 15 Feb 15 Mar 15 Apr 15 May 15 Jun 15 Jul 15 Aug 15 Sep 15 Ave

-0.0% +0.1% +0.1% +0.0% -0.2% -0.2% -0.1% -1.3% -0.0% -0.1% -0.1% -0.1% -0.2%

0-4 Yrs 5-10 Yrs 11-15 Yrs Total 0-4 Yrs 5-10 Yrs 11-15 Yrs Total

2 77 238 317 2 34 59 95

2 15 46 63 5 14 19

7 7 1 16 17

4 9 13 1 3 4

1 2 3 8 8

1 1

4 7 11 3 3 6

1 1

Performance against this target remains good with over 73% of children in care remaining in the same placement for 
at least 2 years.  The statistical neighbour average for this indicator is 66.6%.

Lead Geoff Gurney This indicator is an important measure of the stability of care that a child has experienced. On the 
whole stability is associated with better outcomes – placement instability was highlighted by the 
Social Exclusion Unit as a key barrier to improving educational outcomes.PID Reference K17

Current RAG Green - 73.5%

5 Year trend graph (Oct 10 - Sep 15) Last 12 months

% Difference between exc. 
and inc. UASC

Commentary

CIC Placement Stability: Same Placement for the last 2 years

Theme Placements

Number of children looked after for 2.5 years and of those the number in the same placement for at least 2 years by 
Placement Type

KCC Foster Care

IFA

P&V

Relatives and Friends

Same placement for at least 2 years Not in same placement for at 2 years

Placed with Parents

Age's of the children moving placements 3 or more times in the last 12 months

KCC Residential

Placed for Adoption

Other

50%

55%

60%

65%

70%

75%

80%

55%

60%

65%

70%

75%

80%

RAG - Red Zone RAG - Amber Zone RAG - Green Zone Kent inc. UASC
Kent exc. UASC Latest Stat Neighbour - 66.6% Latest National - 67.0%

50% 

100% 

57% 

69% 
75% 

80% 

100% 

70% 
80% 77% 

30% 

75% 

20% 

100% 

0%

20%

40%

60%

80%

100%

KCC Foster Care IFA P&V Relatives and
Friends

Placed with
Parents

KCC Residential Placed for
Adoption

Other

0-4 Yrs 5-9 Yrs 10-15 Yrs



Produced by: SC SCS Management Information
Publication Date: 26/11/2015 KCPG CIC Indicator Report - 2015-16 Q2 Page 16 of 28

Definition

Oct 14 Nov 14 Dec 14 Jan 15 Feb 15 Mar 15 Apr 15 May 15 Jun 15 Jul 15 Aug 15 Sep 15 Ave

+3.1% +2.7% +2.6% +2.3% +1.9% +2.0% +1.9% +1.9% +1.3% +3.3% +4.4% +5.6% +2.7%

More than 85% of children and young people in care are placed in in-house foster carers or with relatives/friends 
(excluding UASC). Placement start information (transformation programme) shows more than 85% placements are 
made with in-house carers month on month.

Age's of the children placed in IFA's and P&V's as at September 2015

Commentary

Current RAG Green - 86.4%

5 Year trend graph (Oct 10 - Sep 15) Last 12 months

% Difference between exc. 
and inc. UASC

Children placed in IFA's and P&V's within 20 miles of their home as at September 2015

% of CIC in Foster Care placements that are either KCC Foster Care or Relatives 
and Friends (Exc. UASC)

Theme Placements
Lead Geoff Gurney This indicator shows the percentage of Kent Children in Care placed with relatives and friends or in 

KCC Fostering placements as a percentage of all Kent Children in Care.PID Reference

70%
72%
74%
76%
78%
80%
82%
84%
86%
88%
90%

RAG - Red Zone RAG - Amber Zone RAG - Green Zone Kent inc. UASC Kent exc. UASC

50%
55%
60%
65%
70%
75%
80%
85%
90%
95%

100%

8 29 

193 

116 

8 29 

123 

72 

0

50

100

150

200

250

0-4 Yrs 5-9 Yrs 10-15 Yrs 16-17 Yrs

Inc. UASC

Exc. UASC

95 

24 

185 

24 

IFA

P&V

0 20 40 60 80 100 120 140 160 180 200

Inc. UASC

Exc. UASC



Produced by: SC SCS Management Information
Publication Date: 26/11/2015 KCPG CIC Indicator Report - 2015-16 Q2 Page 17 of 28

Definition

0-4 Yrs 5-9 Yrs 10-15 Yrs 16+ Yrs Total

7 17 68 36 128

8 8 33 16 65

1 4 13 14 32

1 5 4 12 22

2 2 5 1 10

Performance for this measure remains consistent with almost 82% of children in care placed within 20 miles from 
home. Those placed 30-50 miles are still likely to include placements within Kent.

Lead Geoff Gurney
PID Reference
Current RAG Green - 81.4%

5 Year trend graph (Oct 10 - Sep 15) Last 12 months

Commentary

Unable to Map

20-30 Miles

30-50 Miles

50-100 Miles

100 Miles+

% of CIC in Foster Care placed within 20 miles from home (exc. UASC & placed 
for adoption)

Theme Placements

Distance from home for those placed further than 20 miles 
away from home by age

Number of children placed further than 20 miles away 
from home by team

Please note, prior to April 2015, this indicator was set at 10 miles

30%

40%

50%

60%

70%

80%

90%

RAG - Red Zone RAG - Amber Zone RAG - Red Zone Kent Exc. UASC

0%
10%
20%
30%
40%
50%
60%
70%
80%
90%

100%

0

20

40

60

80

100

120

140

0-4 Yrs 5-9 Yrs 10-15 Yrs 16+ Yrs

20-30 Miles 30-50 Miles 50-100 Miles 100 Miles+ Unable to Map

41 

55 

53 

70 

1 

37 

0 10 20 30 40 50 60 70 80

North

East

South

West

Adoption & SG

Disability



Produced by: SC SCS Management Information
Publication Date: 26/11/2015 KCPG CIC Indicator Report - 2015-16 Q2 Page 18 of 28

Definition

Oct 14 Nov 14 Dec 14 Jan 15 Feb 15 Mar 15 Apr 15 May 15 Jun 15 Jul 15 Aug 15 Sep 15 Ave

-3.2% -4.0% -3.3% -2.3% -2.0% -1.7% -1.5% -2.3% -5.3% -5.8% -5.5% -6.4% -3.6%

H5 residential accommodation relates to UASC children placed in a reception facility. If these placements are 
excluded, Kent continues to perform strongly in this area with 5% of all children in care being placed in residential 
accommodation

Lead Geoff Gurney This indicator shows the percentage of Kent Children in Care placed in residential placements as a 
percentage of all Kent Children in CarePID Reference K29

Placement type split for the children placed in residential placements

Commentary

Current RAG Red - 11.6%

5 Year trend graph (Oct 10 - Sep 15) Last 12 months

% Difference between exc. 
and inc. UASC

Distance placed away from home for children placed in residential placements

% of CIC in residential placements

Theme Placements

0%

2%

4%

6%

8%

10%

12%

14%

RAG - Green Zone RAG - Amber Zone RAG - Red Zone Kent inc. UASC Kent exc. UASC

0%
2%
4%
6%
8%

10%
12%
14%
16%
18%
20%

H5 - Residential 
accommodation 

182 
71% 

K1 - Secure unit 
1 

0% 

K2 - Homes and Hostels 
65 

26% 

R1 - Residential care home 
5 

2% S1 - All Residential schools 
2 

1% 

Placed within 20 Miles 
186 
73% 

Placed further then 20 Miles 
69 

27% 



Produced by: SC SCS Management Information
Publication Date: 26/11/2015 KCPG CIC Indicator Report - 2015-16 Q2 Page 19 of 28

Definition

This is a year to date figure. 15 of the 47 children with a plan for adoption had a plan agreed by the second review. 
Work is in progress to refresh the current permanency policy and workshops have taken place to support this.

Lead Geoff Gurney
PID Reference A01

Commentary

Number of children where adoption wasn't agreed as the plan by the 2nd review by how many reviews it took for to be 
agreed

Current RAG Red - 68.1

5 Year trend graph (Oct 10 - Sep 15) Last 12 months

Number of children where adoption wasn't agreed as the plan by the 2nd review by age and gender

% of cases where Adoption was agreed as the plan by the 2nd review (Children 
with an Agency Decision)

Theme Adoption

30%

40%

50%

60%

70%

80%

90%

100%

RAG - Red Zone RAG - Amber Zone RAG - Green Zone Kent

50%
55%
60%
65%
70%
75%
80%
85%
90%
95%

100%

3rd Review 
13 

87% 

4th Review 
1 

6% 

5th Review 
1 

7% 

2 2 2 

1 

2 

1 

2 

0

1

2

3

4

5

0 1 2 3 4 5

Female

Male



Produced by: SC SCS Management Information
Publication Date: 26/11/2015 KCPG CIC Indicator Report - 2015-16 Q2 Page 20 of 28

Definition

The data refers to 58 cases, with an average of 549 days between a child becoming looked after and being placed for 
adoption. Performance in Kent is significantly better than the national average of 628 days and the statistical 
neighbour average of 679 days

Lead Geoff Gurney
PID Reference A08

Commentary

Ave days between 'child becoming Looked After' and 'being Placed for Adoption' (Adopted Children) by placement type and 
gender

Current RAG Amber - 549.1

5 Year trend graph (Oct 10 - Sep 15) Last 12 months

Ave days between 'child becoming Looked After' and 'being Placed for Adoption' (Adopted Children) by gender

Ave days between 'child becoming Looked After' and 'being Placed for 
Adoption' (Adopted Children)

Theme Adoption

350

400

450

500

550

600

650

700

RAG - Green Zone RAG - Amber Zone RAG - Red Zone
Kent Latest Stat Neighbour Ave - 679 Latest National Ave - 628

0

100

200

300

400

500

600

700

800

599.9 

436.3 

0

100

200

300

400

500

600

700

Male Female

1363.0 

988.5 

509.2 

1259.5 

473.0 
324.1 

1311.3 

885.4 

452.6 

0

200

400

600

800

1000

1200

1400

1600

A3 - Placed for adoption with consent (under
section 19 of the 2002 Act) with current foster

carer

A5 - Placed for adoption with placement order
(under section 21 of the 2002 Act) with current

foster carer

A6 - Placed for adoption with placement order
(under section 21 of the 2002 Act) not with current

foster carer

Male

Female

Both



Produced by: SC SCS Management Information
Publication Date: 26/11/2015 KCPG CIC Indicator Report - 2015-16 Q2 Page 21 of 28

Definition

The average number of days for the 58 children placed for adoption was 239, with a government target of 121 days. 
KCC continues to work with the judiciary to improve performance in this area.  Reports from the Family Justice 
Board for the last quarter indicate that for the first time Kent is meeting the government target of an average of 26 
weeks for care proceedings.

Lead Geoff Gurney
PID Reference A06

Commentary

Current RAG Red - 239.2

5 Year trend graph (Oct 10 - Sep 15) Last 12 months

Average days from 'placement order being granted' to 'agency decision to match', for Children who have been Adopted by 
gender

Average days from 'placement order being granted' to 'agency decision to match', for Children who have been Adopted by 
placement type and gender

Average number of days from 'Agency Decision to adopt' to 'Placement Order 
being granted'

Theme Adoption

50

100

150

200

250

RAG - Green Zone RAG - Amber Zone RAG - Red Zone Kent

0

50

100

150

200

250

763.0 

565.3 

187.7 

1,036.5 

242.0 
92.6 

899.8 

500.6 

158.6 
0

200

400

600

800

1000

1200

A3 - Placed for adoption with consent (under
section 19 of the 2002 Act) with current foster

carer

A5 - Placed for adoption with placement order
(under section 21 of the 2002 Act) with current

foster carer

A6 - Placed for adoption with placement order
(under section 21 of the 2002 Act) not with current

foster carer

Male

Female

Both

254.2 

205.8 

60

110

160

210

260

310

Male Female



Produced by: SC SCS Management Information
Publication Date: 26/11/2015 KCPG CIC Indicator Report - 2015-16 Q2 Page 22 of 28

Definition

Still meeting the target but for the first time for a long time below the national average of 14%. Set against a 
background of both local authorities and voluntary adoption agencies are reporting a substantial decrease in the 
granting of Placement Orders

Lead Geoff Gurney
PID Reference A12

Commentary

Current RAG Amber - 11.2%

5 Year trend graph (Oct 10 - Sep 15) Last 12 months

% who ceased to be Looked After who were adopted by age and gender

% who ceased to be Looked After who were adopted by end reason and gender

% who ceased to be Looked After who were adopted

Theme Adoption

0%

5%

10%

15%

20%

25%

30%

RAG - Red Zone RAG - Amber Zone RAG - Green Zone

Kent Latest Stat Neighbour Ave - 14.9% Latest National Ave - 14%

0%

5%

10%

15%

20%

25%

30%

4 

9 
6 5 

3 3 

8 

2 

2 

9 

3 
2 

1 

1 

6 

18 

9 

7 

3 3 

9 

3 

0

2

4

6

8

10

12

14

16

18

20

0 1 2 3 4 5 6 7

Female

Male

22 
18 

10 

8 

32 

26 

0

5

10

15

20

25

30

35

E11 - Adopted – application unopposed E12 - Adopted, consent dispensed with

Female

Male



Produced by: SC SCS Management Information
Publication Date: 26/11/2015 KCPG CIC Indicator Report - 2015-16 Q2 Page 23 of 28

Definition

Care Leavers in suitable accommodation

Theme Care Leavers

This particular cohort within this government return continues to contain young people that have been closed to the services so there is no 
contact. Work continues to cleanse the information that informs this return to ensure it is a more accurate reflection of the service. This figure 
may continue to fluctuate until this work has been completed. The 0-25 yrs strategy is also working on more appropriate accommodation 
solutions being in place for this cohort of young people. The 18plus service currently is reporting 90% of the yp on its caseload that it is in 
contact with who are in suitable accommodation which is an increase on the figures quoted on the government returns

Lead Sue Clifton
PID Reference

Commentary

Current RAG Red - 59.1%

5 Year trend graph (Oct 10 - Sep 15) Last 12 months

Number of Care leavers in suitable accommodation (who Kent who are in contact with)

Number of Care leavers in unsuitable accommodation (who Kent who are in contact with)

30%

40%

50%

60%

70%

80%

90%

RAG - Red Zone RAG - Amber Zone RAG - Green Zone

Kent Latest Statistical Neighbour Ave - 76.3% Latest National Ave - 77.8%

0%
10%
20%
30%
40%
50%
60%
70%
80%
90%

100%

65 

5 

93 103 

4 1 

118 

2 12 11 

0
20
40
60
80

100
120
140

1 
3 

2 

10 

2 

6 
7 

1 

0
2
4
6
8

10
12



Produced by: SC SCS Management Information
Publication Date: 26/11/2015 KCPG CIC Indicator Report - 2015-16 Q2 Page 24 of 28

Definition

Care leavers in employment, education or training

Theme Care Leavers

Current RAG Amber - 38.0%

Work is ongoing with colleagues from skills and employability, VSK and CXK to improve the ETE opportunities 
available to young people. Current figures for all yp that the service is in contact with in respect of ETE is 57.8% this 
is an increase on the current government returns which is for a specific cohort.

Lead Sue Clifton
PID Reference

Commentary

5 Year trend graph (Oct 10 - Sep 15) Last 12 months

Number of Care leavers in employment, education or training by type of employment, education or training

20%

25%

30%

35%

40%

45%

50%

RAG - Red Zone RAG - Amber Zone RAG - Green Zone

Kent Latest Statistical Neighbour Ave - 42.9% Latest National Ave - 45.0%

0%
10%
20%
30%
40%
50%
60%
70%
80%
90%

100%

19 

103 

86 

35 

119 

38 

27 
31 

2 
0

20

40

60

80

100

120

140

F1 - Young
person engaged

full time in
higher

education (i.e.
studies beyond

A level)

F2 - Young
person in full

time education
other than

higher
education

F3 - Young
person in full

time training or
employment

G4 - Young
person not in

education,
employment or

training,
because of
illness or
disability

G5 - Young
person not in

education,
employment or
training: other
circumstances

G6 - Young
person not in

education,
employment or
training due to
pregnancy or

parenting

P2 - Young
person in part
time education

other than
higher

education

P3 - Young
person in part

time training or
employment

Not Known/Not
Recorded



Produced by: SC SCS Management Information
Publication Date: 26/11/2015 KCPG CIC Indicator Report - 2015-16 Q2 Page 25 of 28

Definition

% of Care Leavers we are in contact with

Theme Care Leavers

Current RAG Amber - 65.7%

Staff continue to work with MIU to cleanse some of these figures. Staff are trying to re-engage and contact young 
people who have been closed on the system. Managers monitoring of young people we are not in contact with takes 
place on a fortnightly basis and actions discussed with the personal advisers as to methods of re-engagement.

Lead Sue Clifton
PID Reference

Commentary

5 Year trend graph (Oct 10 - Sep 15) Last 12 months

Number of male care leavers Kent is in contact with by age Number of female care leavers Kent is in contact with by age

Gender of the care leavers Kent is in contact with

30%
35%
40%
45%
50%
55%
60%
65%
70%
75%
80%

RAG - Red Zone RAG - Amber Zone RAG - Green Zone Kent

0%
10%
20%
30%
40%
50%
60%
70%
80%
90%

100%

37 33 34 

41 
24 14 

78 

57 
48 

0

50

100

150

200

19 20 21

Exc UASC
UASC

32 30 42 
5 

3 32 35 
45 

0

20

40

60

80

100

120

140

160

180

200

19 20 21

UASC

Exc UASC

Male 
292 
63% 

Female 
168 
37% 



Produced by: SC SCS Management Information
Publication Date: 26/11/2015 KCPG CIC Indicator Report - 2015-16 Q2 Page 26 of 28

Definition

Definition

5 Year trend graph (Oct 10 - Sep 15) Last 12 months

Commentary
Average caseloads within the Children in Care Service have been affected by the development of the new structure 
to include UASC cases.  The target caseload was set at 15 to reflect the fact that care proceedings are held within the 
service.  With the addition of UASC cases, higher caseloads of up to 20 have been viewed as acceptable.  Further 
work is to be undertaken to recalibrate overall caseload targets in the light of these changes

Lead Philip Segurola
PID Reference
Current RAG Amber - 17.0

Ave Caseloads of social workers in CIC Teams (District Teams Only)

Theme Staffing

5 Year trend graph (Oct 10 - Sep 15) Last 12 months

Commentary
The recruitment and retention of front line qualified social work staff continues to present a challenge.  Two phases 
of NQSW recruitment have taken place between May to September, with over fifty staff recruited as a result.  The 
impact of this will be shown in the Third Quarter.  Recruitment activity has been reviewed, with the microsite 
updated and key messages will reflect the benefits of the Transformation Programme.

% of caseholding posts filled by KCC Permanent QSW

Theme Staffing

Current RAG Amber - 75.7%

Lead Philip Segurola
PID Reference

60%
65%
70%
75%
80%
85%
90%
95%

100%

RAG - Red Zone RAG - Amber Zone RAG - Red Zone Kent

60%
65%
70%
75%
80%
85%
90%
95%

100%

10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20

RAG - Green Zone RAG - Amber Zone RAG - Red Zone Kent

10

12

14

16

18

20



Produced by: SC SCS Management Information
Publication Date: 26/11/2015 KCPG CIC Indicator Report - 2015-16 Q2 Page 27 of 28

Definition

5 Year trend graph (Oct 10 - Sep 15) Last 12 months

As of 30/09/15 there were 2180 children & young people in receipt of an IRO service inclusive of Unaccompanied Asylum Seeking 
Children. There are 30 FTE IRO's split across the two districts of which 13 are currently locum staff. In order to bring caseloads 
down from the previous higher figures additional IRO capacity was agree, locum posts were recruited to and caseloads were 
reducing to the agreed 70 cases per FTE. The unprecedented volume of UASC over the summer period has impacted negatively 
on this process and an additional 3 IRO staff have been required to respond entirely to the resulting need. SE Kent which has not 
seen a significant increase in UASC being settled in the area has maintained a caseload average of 70.1 but  the NW has seen 
increases entirely related to UASC arrivals. The County average will increase in the coming months putting renewed pressure on 
our ability to reduce IRO caseloads, and improve the wider inter-Review contact with children and young people.

Commentary

Average Caseloads of IROs

Theme Staffing
Lead Philip Segurola
PID Reference
Current RAG Amber - 76.1

40

50

60

70

80

90

100

110

120

RAG - Green Zone RAG - Amber Zone RAG - Red Zone Kent

40

50

60

70

80

90

100

110

120



This page has been intentionally left empty



By:                           Peter Oakford, Cabinet Member for Specialist Children’s 
Services

                            
Andrew Ireland, Corporate Director of Social Care, Health 
and Wellbeing

To:                        Corporate Parenting Panel – 8 December 2015

Subject:                  REGIONAL COLLABORATION MEETING

Classification:        Unrestricted

Electoral Division(s): All

Summary:  This paper is intended to provide Members of the Kent 
Corporate Parenting Panel with an update on the Corporate Parenting Panel 
Regional Meeting held in November 2015.

Recommendations:  The Corporate Parenting Panel is asked to NOTE the content 
of the report.

1. Introduction

1.1 This report is intended to provide the CPP with an outline of and feedback on 
the outcomes from the Corporate Parenting Panel Regional Meeting 
which was held on 11 November 2015.  

1.2 The Chair of the Kent Corporate Parenting Panel and the Interim Assistant   
Director for Corporate Parenting attended the event together with Members 
and Officers from three other local authorities (West Sussex, East Sussex, 
and the Isle of White) Surrey gave apologies for the meeting but agreed to            
facilitate the next event.

2. Structure of the Meeting

2.2 The morning session was entitled “Corporate Parenting is everyone’s 
business”. Two groups (members and officers) separately explored options
and solutions on the problem of engaging all members of the Council. 
There was also a discussion on solutions to engaging more children and 
young people as well as raising ambitions for children who are looked after. 
This was then followed by a whole group discussion bring all items together. 

2.2.1 The group discussed what was known and not known, referring to 
benchmarking data provided by a larger group of local authorities: Bracknell 
Forest, Brighton and Hove, Buckinghamshire, East Sussex,  Hampshire, Isle 
of White, Kent, Medway, Milton Keynes, Oxfordshire, Portsmouth, Reading, 



Slough,  Somerset; Southampton, Surrey, West Berkshire, West Sussex, 
Wokingham and Windsor and Maidenhead. East Sussex and West Sussex 
are two of Kent’s statistical neighbours.

2.2.2 Discussions raised the following key issues: 

 Use of a bursary fund for Children in Care Achievement Awards: £500 
award

 Children and Young People attending meetings of the full council
 Investing to save in the in-house fostering service as well as driving down 

external placement costs
 Named Council members for key stage cohorts of children in care
 Designated officers for participation and engagement with a link to 

Corporate Parenting Panel
 Sponsoring Roundabouts to advertise fostering
 County Group acting like a PTA – linked to Virtual School
 Re-launching the pledge
 Evening meetings
 Corporate Parenting Panel not acting as a scrutiny panel
 A dashboard consisting of only the top five key performance indicators
 Expectation that members would hold officers to account more
 Sub groups and working groups format
 Councillors as Community champions to improve outcomes for children
 Chief Executive Member of Corporate Parenting Panel – and 

representatives from other agencies, e.g. Police, Fire, Health and Housing 
Decision Makers

 Further training for members and officers

2.3 There was also a presentation by the Head of the East Sussex Virtual School.

2.4 The third session was a presentation of a report commissioned by the group 
on “The Voice of the Child”, followed by a discussion of how the voice of 
Looked After Children is captured and embedded in the work of the Corporate 
Parenting Panel. How can the report findings be used effectively?

 Other sources of feedback include Reviews, PEPS, Complaints, 
Challenge Cards and surveys.

 Problem of same children from the Children in Care Council
 Need to demonstrate how feedback influences developments
 Impact of pledges/promises
 Outcomes: use of proxy measures
 Advantages of collaboration: benchmarking data, networking, peer 

reviews and member to member challenges
 Joint meetings with Children in Care
 Better attendance at Corporate Parenting Panel meetings

2.5 The final session was a round up and discussion on the value of collaborative



working between Local Authorities, and of further developing the Corporate 
Parenting network. The group also touched on how to measure outcomes 
for Looked after Children.

3. Outcomes
 More collaboration and working together – examples are CSE, Missing, 

and UASC
 Members felt that the outcome information needed to be more 

personalised; strategic information needed to connect to children and 
young people

 Children and young people could be asked to make a presentation on 
what makes a good social worker or good Corporate Parent

 Members and Officers concluded that it had been a good opportunity to 
talk and an annual event would be welcomed.  In between, there 
should be a virtual meeting space (online) to swap ideas, ask for 
advice and share good practice

 Challenge from young people on why we are measuring what we are 
measuring.

4. Recommendations: The Corporate Parenting Panel is asked to NOTE the 
content of the report.

5. Background documents
None

6. Contacts

Lead Officer
Geoff Gurney
Interim Assistant Director for Corporate Parenting
03000 414873
Geoff.gurney@kent.gov.uk

Lead Director
Philip Segurola
Director, Specialist Children’s Services
03000 413120
Philip.segurola@kent.gov.uk

mailto:Geoff.gurney@kent.gov.uk
mailto:Philip.segurola@kent.gov.uk




By:                           Peter Oakford, Cabinet Member for Specialist Children’s 
Services

                            
Andrew Ireland, Corporate Director of Social Care, Health 
and Wellbeing

To:                        Corporate Parenting Panel – 8 December 2015

Subject                  LEADING IMPROVEMENTS FOR LOOKED AFTER 
CHILDREN ASSESSMENT – LILAC 

Classification: Unrestricted

Electoral Division(s): All

Summary:  In 2014 KCC commissioned A National Voice to undertake an 
independent assessment to look at the quality of Participation and Engagement with 
Kent’s Children in Care and Care Leavers. KCC achieved four of seven standards.
A National Voice was invited to return to Kent in September 2015 to re-assess the 
three standards not achieved.

The paper outlines the results of the re-assessment; its key 
recommendations and suggests a future work plan.  

Recommendations:  The Corporate Parenting Panel is asked to:
a) NOTE the assessment and its findings
b) AGREE the need for work streams to continue to 
address the Staff Standard not yet achieved

1. Introduction

1.1 The LILAC Assessment stands for Leading Improvements for Looked After 
Children. It has been developed by a National Voice as a way of involving 
young people with experience of the care system to carry out an assessment 
of how well services delivered by the local authority are enabling children in 
care and care leavers to participate; both at an individual level, and in the 
development of policies and services that support them.  

1.2 The assessment of the three standards not achieved in 2014 took place over a 
three day period in September 2015 and it focused on style of leadership, 
structures and staff. 

1.3 A successful assessment is rewarded with an appropriate LILAC mark that 
indicates the level of compliance. If one standard is met, the mark features 
one lilac flower and if two standards are met; two flowers are awarded. This 
continues up to a maximum of seven. A certificate is then awarded which 
indicates the level of compliance revealed by the assessment. The LILAC kite 
mark is valid for two years.

2. The Outcome of the Assessment



2.1 The final report (attached as Appendix 1) shows Kent has achieved two of the 
outstanding three standards, thus resulting in Kent having achieved six of the 
seven possible standards. 

2.2 The findings are as follows:

Standard 1 Shared Values LILAC STANDARD – ACHIEVED

Standard 2 Style of Leadership LILAC STANDARD - ACHIEVED

Standard 3 Structures LILAC STANDARD - ACHIEVED

Standard 4 Staff LILAC STANDARD - NOT ACHIEVED

Standard 5 Recruitment and Selection LILAC STANDARD – ACHIEVED

Standard 6 Care Planning and Review LILAC STANDARD – ACHIEVED

Standard 7 Complaints and Advocacy – LILAC STANDARD – ACHIEVED

3. Summary of Assessment (extract from the report)

Overall, we were impressed with the progress made in the last year to 
implement the recommendations in our previous report. We found a strong 
commitment at all levels of management and staff to genuinely listen to and 
respond to the views of young people. In particular, at Director and Elected 
Member level there is an understanding of the need to design services based 
on what young people say they need and a clear message that services 
should be young people friendly. The recommendations in the original LILAC 
Report were reported to young people through the OCYPC newsletters and to 
members through the Corporate Parenting Panel. Young people were able to 
comment and make suggestions at meetings of the OCYPC and other events 
and there has been a serious strategic response to the report.

The work of the VSK Participation Team and the Care Leaver Apprentices is 
well known and respected. They have a presence across the Children’s Social 
Care Directorate that is getting closer to ensuring that all young people and 
carers know of the opportunities open to young people to contribute to 
participation activities. There has been an increase in participation activity and 
the way it seeks to allow young people from all over the County to get 
involved.

Having said that in the year between the surveys of young people there has 
not been any major change in their perception of how well their views are 
listened to and respected. The staff survey did show that more believe that 
managers make themselves available, young people are able to get involved 
and their views are listened to in reviews. This suggests that whilst change is 
happening more work needs to be done to translate convince young people 
that the change is real. 



4. Recommendations

4.1 The Corporate Parenting Panel is asked to:
a) NOTE the assessment and its findings
b) AGREE the need for work streams to continue to 
address the Staff Standard not yet achieved.

5. Background Documents

None

6. Appendices

Appendix 1- LILAC final report for KCC 2015

7. Lead Officer
Sarah Skinner
Business Service Manager, Virtual School Kent
03000 415067
Sarah.skinner@kent.gov.uk

Lead Director
Philip Segurola
Director, Specialist Children’s Services
03000 413120
Philip.segurola@kent.gov.uk

mailto:Sarah.skinner@kent.gov.uk
mailto:Philip.segurola@kent.gov.uk




Final RepoRt FoR kent county council 2015 

SaulA01
Typewritten Text

SaulA01_1
Typewritten Text

SaulA01_2
Typewritten Text
Appendix 1

SaulA01_3
Typewritten Text



Introduction	 3

About	LILAC	 3

The	Team	 3

The	Assessment	 4

Summary	of	Assessment	 4

The	Full	Findings	

	 Standard	2:		Style	of	leadership	 6

	 Standard	3:		Structures	 8

	 Standard	4:		Staff	 10

Standards	Previously	Awarded	 12

	 Standard	1:		Shared	Values	 12

	 Standard	5:		Recruitment	and	Selection	 13

	 Standard	6:		Care	Planning	and	Reviews	 14

	 Standard	7:		Complaints	and	Advocacy	 15

Finally	 16

Contents

2



IntroduCtIon

A LILAC assessment of Kent County Council originally took place in late September and early 

October 2014 against the 7	LILAC	Standards that represent a quality participation service, 

On that occasion Kent were awarded the LILAC Mark for four Standards – Shared Values, 

Recruitment and Selection, Care Planning and Review and Complaints and Advocacy. It was decided 

that the LILAC Mark should not be awarded for Style of Leadership, Structures and Staffing. 

The LILAC Assessors returned in September 2015 to reassess against these three Standards. 

This report will focus particularly on these three Standards but will pass comment on the progress 

made against the recommendations made in relation to the four other Standards.

AbOuT LILAC

Lilac is a project run by A	National	Voice. The key purpose of LILAC is to draw upon the 

experiences and expertise of care–experienced young people to improve the policy and practice 

of agencies in how they involve and consult with children in care and care leavers. It does this 

by using a framework of quality standards for involvement which has been developed by care-

experienced young people. Young people from care are trained to assess the performance of 

agencies against the LILAC standards. LILAC involves care–experienced young people:

  Carrying out assessments of how well services involve and consult with children and  

young people

 Delivering training on participation and the LILAC standards

The LILAC standards are based on the well–known Hear By Right approach to participation but they 

have been developed to closely reflect the nature of the care system. They have been developed by 

care–experienced young people to reflect what is important to them. Each standard is backed by a 

number of criteria to ensure a robust methodology that focuses on quality over processes.

ThE TEAM

Two trained Assessors took part in this Assessment: Ahmed Mahmud and Jade Aitken. These 

young people have many years combined care experience and have lived in a wide range of 

placements including foster care, residential care, kinship placements, supported lodgings and 

independence. They have been trained by LILAC to deliver training and to carry out assessments.

LILAC Assessors act as outstanding role-models for other young people in care, having achieved 

a variety of accomplishments including owning their own home, being in paid employment, doing 

apprenticeships and succeeding in both further and higher education. Their main motivation behind 

being involved in the project is to improve the lives of looked-after children and give children and 

young people in care a voice.

IntroductIon 3



IntroduCtIon

ThE ASSESSMEnT

This	Assessment	is	based	on:

1  Policies, procedures and other information provided by Kent County Council. 

2  Three days spent ‘on-site’ conducting both group and individual interviews with children and 

young people, foster carers and members of children’s social care staff.

3  Responses to online questionnaires for children and young people, foster carers and staff. 

Kent have 1203 looked after young people at the time of the re-assessment over 10 years 

old. We received 185 replies from young people, this is 15% of the total number, sufficient to 

gain a sense of how young people feel about the services they are receiving. We received 138 

completed questionnaires from foster carers and 126 from staff.

SuMMARY Of ASSESSMEnT

Kent is a large local authority with a large number of young people in care. It is also facing 

immense problems resulting from the increased numbers of unaccompanied asylum seekers 

arriving into the authority.

Overall, we were impressed with the progress made in the last year to implement the 

recommendations in our previous report. We found a strong commitment at all levels of 

management and staff to genuinely listen to and respond to the views of young people. In particular, 

at Director and Elected Member level there is an understanding of the need to design services 

based on what young people say they need and a clear message that services should be young 

people friendly. The recommendations in the original LILAC Report were reported to young people 

through the OCYPC newsletters and to members through the Corporate Parenting Panel. Young 

people were able to comment and make suggestions at meetings of the OCYPC and other events 

and there has been a serious strategic response to the report.

The work of the VSK Participation Team and the Care Leaver Apprentices is well known and 

respected. They have a presence across the Children’s Social Care Directorate that is getting closer 

to ensuring that all young people and carers know of the opportunities open to young people to 

contribute to participation activities. There has been an increase in participation activity and the way 

it seeks to allow young people from all over the County to get involved.

having said that in the year between the surveys of young people there has not been any major 

changes in their perception of how well their views are listened to and respected. The staff survey 

did show that more believe that managers make themselves available, young people are able to get 

involved and their views are listened to in reviews. This suggests that whilst change is happening 

more work needs to be done to translate convince young people that the change is real. 

With	this	proviso	we	have	decided	that	sufficient	progress	has	been	made	in	the	last	year	

to	award	Kent	County	Council	the	LILAC	Charter	Mark	in	two	of	the	three	areas	previously	

thought	to	be	inadequate.	Whilst	there	have	been	positive	developments	against	the	Staff	

Standard	we	do	not	think	that	sufficient	improvement	has	been	made.

4IntroductIon



IntroduCtIon

SuMMARY Of ASSESSMEnT (COnTInuED)

A final question to young people in our survey was

“	How	far	do	you	feel	you	have	a	say	in	what	happens	in	your	life”	

Young people answered this question on a scale of 1-10.

5IntroductIon

Scale	 1	 2	 3	 4	 5	 6	 7	 8	 9	 10

			%	 2%	 1%	 2%	 4%	 15%	 8%	 11%	 8%	 12%	 	29%



the Full FIndIngs

Standard 2      Style of leaderShip 

Senior	managers	and	elected	members	adopt	a	style	of	leadership	that	champions	and	

promotes	the	involvement	of	children	and	young	people	at	all	levels	of	the	local	authority.		

They	demonstrate	the	need	to	work	in	partnership	with	children	and	young	people.

How	Kent	County	Council	achieved	this	Standard:

We want elected members and senior managers to be accessible to young people and model 

behaviour that demonstrates the importance of young people’s views and transmit this throughout 

the organisation.

A constant theme of our meetings with staff and carers was that they felt there had been a significant 

change in the profile and approachability of elected members and senior managers in the last year. 

The percentage of staff saying they felt this was the case rose in the year from 31% to 56%.

Our meetings with elected members and senior managers demonstrated the efforts they are making 

to “change the culture” of the children’s social care. The Looked After Children’s and Care Leavers 

Strategy for 2015/6 has a priority to Increase children and young people’s impact on service design 

and delivery. In the period since the last LILAC Assessment the Cabinet Member for Specialist 

Children’s Services has had 22 visits or meetings with children and young people.

The young people members of the Corporate Parenting Panel are usually Care Leaver Apprentices 

and there is evidence that they have a significant impact on the discussions and decisions of these 

meetings. Whilst young people from the OCYPC told us they had been to the Corporate Parenting 

Panel we would still like to see other young people also attending the CPb. There is a recognition 

that there needs to be representation of the needs of unaccompanied asylum seekers on the CPb 

and this is a future priority.

We heard of other examples that the culture of listening to young people is spreading. A recent 

report to a Select Committee on Corporate Parenting was rejected because members felt it did not 

have a strong enough voice of young people. A recent Children’s Services Awareness session was 

attended by 38 members. Care Leaver Apprentices also attended a Children’s Services Challenge 

Group of 200 managers from across the authority and received 27 expessions of interest to create 

apprenticeships for young people.

Whilst we were impressed with the progress made and the efforts made to improve in future there is 

no reason to believe “the job is done”. Our survey of young people showed that the increase in staff 

feeling that senior managers are more approachable is not reflected in the views of young people. 

LILac Standard        achieVed

6the FuLL FIndIngS



the Full FIndIngs

Standard 2     Style of leaderShip

The percentage of young people who said they know who key senior managers are stayed the 

same at 20% and those who said they would be able to talk to them rose slightly from 20% to 26%. 

This is despite the recommendation we made about a postcard being given to young people with 

photographs of key people being implemented. All the members of the Young Adults Committee we 

met said that they have seen this postcard.

LILAC	2014	Recommendations

  There should be a variety of children and young people sitting on the Corporate Parenting Board 

at least part of the meeting e.g. last or first 30 minutes to give updates and views about the care 

system and if any changes needs to be done.

  Send a postcard to all children and young people showing the management structure of 

Kent County Council, with photos of the Director, Elected Member and other relevant senior 

managers. This should be repeated annually.

 Amend the Foster Care guide to include photos and details of managers 

  Give young people more influence in setting the agenda in Kent County Council by allowing 

them to talk to senior managers in a structured way (although this is mentioned in the policy, it is 

not promoted well), ensuring participation is bottom-up as well as top-down.

  Ensure that children and young people are approached to participate using a range of methods 

such as text message. This would go some way to ensuring the maximum audience is reached.

•  A revised children and young people’s guide to fostering is available on the KentCaresTown 

website. The language and layout is attractive and should be accessible to young people.

•  Members of the Children in Care Councils said that they felt they were able to set the agenda. 

A significant development has been the Challenge Card system. Young people in our meetings 

said that this is a good way of raising issues and we were told of examples where these had 

gone to the Corporate Parenting Panel and taken. The KentCaresTown website has been 

expanded and there are discussions going on about developing or buying in a Phone App that 

will extend the range of methods young people can use to give their views.

the FuLL FIndIngS 7



the Full FIndIngs

Standard 3      StructureS

Structures	are	in	place	to	ensure	that	children	and	young	people	are	involved	in	the	planning	

and	evaluation	of	services	and	that	these	structures	are	flexible.	They	do	not	rely	on	the	

involvement	of	a	small	articulate	group	of	children	and	young	people,	but	take	into	account	

different	abilities,	experiences	and	skills.

How	Kent	County	Council	achieved	this	Standard:

There	is	an	overall	Children’s	Services	Participation	Strategy.

We think that the range of structures and opportunities available to young people has improved 

since our last assessment. There are four regional OCYPC Groups, with County wide meetings 

happening twice a year. There is a new Young Adults Council that reflects the views of older young 

people in care and care leavers and a new Junior OCYPC has its first meeting this month. Records 

show that in 2015 40 young people expressed an interest in joining the OCYPC with a regular 

membership of 31, an increase from 25 in 2014. The YAC has 12 members. Some of the meetings 

of the different groups are attended by members of the Corporate Parenting Panel. 15 meetings 

were attended between January and August 2015.

There are many other opportunities for young people to give their views through fun days, 

participation days and awards events, 17 additional events have been held in the last year attended 

by 344 young people. In addition the new Challenge Cards have added a new opportunity for young 

people who may not want to attend meetings.

The VSK Participation Team are well resourced and staffed, a permanent staff of three 

supplemented with seven Apprentice Participation Workers. They produce regular newsletters that 

provide information and manage the KentCaresTown website. These are attractive advertisments for 

the work that the Team do.

Communication about the various OCYPC meetings via staff and carers is improving. Staff told us that 

the Care Leaver Apprentices are proactive in ensuring they have information (though few social workers 

seem to use the KentCaresTown website. 80% of staff said they felt that young people know how 

they can be involved in developing services with 73% daying that young peole are given information. 

This is a significant increase on a year ago. foster carers were more positive this year about both the 

information they receive and the possibility of things changing as a result. 60% said they know about 

the Participation team, an increase from 50% last year, but only 40% said they had encouraged young 

people to get involved, but 17% said they do this sometimes. both groups of foster carers we met we 

met said they had noticed an improvement in information and opportunities in the last year.

LILac Standard        achieVed

the FuLL FIndIngS 8



the Full FIndIngs

Standard 3     StructureS

however, there is once again evidence that the efforts to develop more comprehensive structures 

and improve communication has not yet had the desired impact on the knowledge that young 

people have. The percentage saying that they know about participation opportunities rose from 

38% to 41%, with those not sure rising from 14% to 18%. 49% said they have been asked to give 

their views on the services they receive. There is obviously more work to be done in ensuring that 

most young people know that there are opportunities for them.

LILAC	2014	Recommendations

   Improve communication across the structures to ensure that young people are heard and know 

how to be involved in shaping or improving of services over and above the opportunities to be a 

member of the OCYPC.

  Deliver training for staff and foster carers on the importance of participation for all LAC to ensure 

that the new participation policy is implemented. This could be devised in-house, or is available 

from national charities such as ANV or Participation Works.

  As time goes on, involve a wider range of children and young people in the development of the 

Children in Care Councils.

 Produce a training policy stating what young people can expect from their involvement.

  Employ a wider range of methods to involve young people by encouraging young people on the 

Children in Care Councils to take a lead in on-going service evaluation; for example, by reviewing 

the top 10 concerns for young people and the respective actions taken.

  Establish on-going, clear and consistent feedback channels between children and young people 

and senior management on a formal basis e.g. as part of a newsletter sent to all children and 

young people.

•  Apprentices have been involved in the Skills to foster training programmes and have been 

involved in a workshop for newly qualified social workers. The content of these include the 

structures and opportunities children and young people have for participation. We would like to 

see these opportunities extended to other young people.

•  Young people have taken part in various surveys, including the LILAC survey,that seek to 

evaluate services. In meetings young people said that they felt “surveyed out”. Apprentices have 

been consulted by the Commissioning Team when they are reviewing services.

•  The Challenge Cards have created an additional feedback mechanism between young people 

and the formal structures.         

the FuLL FIndIngS 9



the Full FIndIngs

Standard 4      Staff

LILac Standard        not achieVed

the FuLL FIndIngS 10

Staff	are	expected	to	support	and	contribute	to	practice	and	policy	on	the	active	involvement	

of	children	and	young	people	in	services	that	affect	them.

Why	Kent	County	Council	did	not	meet	this	Standard:

At the time of the 2014 LILAC Assessment it was decided that Kent did not meet the requirements 

of this Standard. Whilst there have been developments in the last year we do not feel that the 

performance has developed sufficiently to change the view we had last year.

In two of the criteria under this Standard Kent meet the LILAC requirements. The authority has a 

well staffed and resourced Participation Team, including seven Apprentice Participation Workers, 

other staff and carers are enthusiastic about the need for young people to have their views heard. 

five of them have been in care. 61% of staff said that they know of young people being offered 

apprenticeships or work experience within the authority. The recent presentation by apprentices to 

the Challenge Group brought about 27 expressions of interest wanting to know how Council services 

can help with employability skills, including work experience and apprenticeship opportunities.

Our meetings with young people told us that young people still feel that their social workers change 

too often and that social workers are not as available and accessible as they would like. This was not 

a view of every meeting, the group of unaccompanied asylum seeking young people felt that they 

are well supported and cared for. Whilst the views we heard are anecdotal there was a consistent 

message. One young person has suggested that a “buddying” system for social workers would 

mean that young people have a second relationship if their social worker is unavailable or leaves.

Since last year there have been workshops for newly qualified social workers, led in part by the 

Apprentice Participation Workers. At the moment our survey showed that 49% of staff said that 

they had had training in participation, compare with 48% last year. If all new staff receive the 

new workshop this will increase band there are plans to embed Participation and Engagement 

workshops in to the staff core training programme. We would like to see more involvement of young 

people in care and care leavers in training for staff and foster carers. At the moment there is a 

reliance on the Apprentices.

Training in Participation and Involvement has been introduced on to the foster Care Training 

Programme. This training will be held eight times between October 2014 and March 2015. 

however, this year 53% of foster carers said they have had training in participation compared  

with 70% last year.



the Full FIndIngs

Standard 4     Staff

the FuLL FIndIngS 11

There is no mention in the Induction Policy of newly appointed staff receiving information about 

participation and no involvement of young people in the induction process. 40% of staff said that 

participation was included in their induction compared with 38% last year, 23% said young people 

were involved compared with 24% last year.

Young people are not currently involved in staff appraisal. In our meetings with staff no one said that 

young people have been involved in their appraisal. Our survey 9% said young people had been 

involved, the same as last year. The percentage of foster carers who said that young people have 

been involved in their appraisal fell from 60% to 47%.

 

LILAC	2014	recommendations

   Explicitly set out young people’s involvement in staff induction and on-going appraisal in the 

participation and induction policies.

 Include the active participation of young people in all child care role descriptions.

  Provide training for staff and foster carers on participation, delivered wholly or in part by care 

experienced young people. Make a regular programme of training available to all staff and  

foster carers. It’s also a good idea to offer ‘refresher’ training to keep everybody up to speed.

  Encourage young people to become co-trainers in programmes like Total Respect, or to 

become LILAC assessors and trainers.

  Make more use of training resources led by young people, such as DVDs made by young  

people and create formal training packs.

•  There still needs to be young people’s input into job descriptions.

•  The young people contribution to training of foster carers and staff is provided by the 

Apprentices. Opportunities should be extended to other young people.

•  Plans to embed Participation and Engagement workshops into the staff core training  

programme should be implemented. 

• Staff should meet young people as part of their induction.

•  Consideration should be given to how the views of young people can be included in  

staff appraisals.



standards PrevIously awarded

Standard 1      Shared ValueS

12StandardS PrevIouSLy achIeved

The	local	authority	adopts	shared	values	that	enable	children	and	young	people	to	be	actively	

involved	in	services	that	directly	affect	them,	including	honesty	about	what	can	and	cannot	be	

changed	and	any	limitations	due	to	the	organisation’s	responsibilities.

LILAC	2014	recommendations

   Young person-friendly posters of Kent’s Children’s Services’ Mission Statement and Pledge 

should be displayed in all centres, quoting UNCRC Article 12.

  LILAC assessors felt both children’s guides for fostered children was too informative and needed 

to be more child friendly, a revamp is needed with input from children and young people in 

designing and with the text. Furthermore, social workers should explain the children’s guide at 

regular intervals with the children and young people.

•  We saw posters of the Mission Statement and Pledge in all the KCC buildings we visited.

•  A revised children and young people’s guide to fostering is available on the kentcarestown 

website. The language and layout is attractive and should be accessible to young people.

LILac Standard        achieVed



standards PrevIously awarded

Standard 5      recruitment & Selection

LILac Standard        achieVed

StandardS PrevIouSLy achIeved 13

Children	and	young	people	should	be	involved	in	the	recruitment	and	selection	of	all	staff	and	

carers	who	will	work	with	them	or	be	responsible	for	them.

In the year since the last assessment young people have been more involved in recruitment through 

the interviews for a new intake of social workers this year. There is an ongoing increase in the 

recruitment of young people to “The Recruit Crew” to make sure young people will be available 

without the task being concentrated on a few young people. 66% of foster carers and 37% of staff 

said that young people had been involved in their recruitment.

 

LILAC	2014	recommendations

   Implement a peer mentoring programme structure to involve and train young people in 

recruitment and selection and ensure a broad range of young people are involved.

•  There has not been progress with developing a peer mentoring programme for young people 

involved in recruitment, though Apprentices support other young people on a group or 

individual basis.

13



standards PrevIously awarded

14

Standard 6      care planning & reView

LILac Standard        achieVed

StandardS PrevIouSLy achIeved 14

Children	and	young	people	should	feel	involved	in	the	decision	making	that	affects	their	lives	

and	all	decisions	about	them	should	be	fully	explained.	All	decision	making,	planning	and	

review	processes	should	be	easily	understood.

Comparison	of	the	young	people	survey	results	in	2014	and	2015

LILAC	2014	recommendations

   Consideration should be given to finding ways for all children and young people including 

children with disabilities to be able to fully participate in their reviews.

  Consider engaging a care experienced Peer Volunteer Mentor in Kent County Council to help 

children and young people understand why they are in care and the importance of being 

involved in plans affecting their lives and their future. 

  We were told of various communication methods and techniques that are now being used to help 

young people with disabilities and communication difficulties have more involvement in their reviews.

  Apprentices are available to give individual support to young people to understand why they  

are in care.

Question	 2014	 2015

Do	you	know	why	you	are	in	care?	 88%	 92%

Do	you	know	what	your	care	plan	is?	 80%	 72%

Did	you	help	write	it	or	agree	it	 70%	 53%

Do	you	think	it	reflects	your	wishes	and	feelings?	 70%	 65%

Do	you	feel	you	had	a	choice	in	which	school	you	go	or	went	to?	 71%	 72%

Do	you	feel	you	have	had	a	choice	over	which	placement	you	have?	 71%	 72%

Do	you	usually	attend	your	reviews?	 82%	 82%

When	you	do	attend,	are	you	able	to	say	how	you	really	feel	in	them?	 80%	 78%

Do	you	feel	listened	to	at	your	reviews?	 80%	 78%

Do	you	get	a	say	in	how	your	review	is	run?	 60%	 60%

Do	you	know	who	your	IRO	is?	 75%	 75%



standards PrevIously awarded

15

Standard 7      complaintS & adVocacy

LILac Standard        achieVed

StandardS PrevIouSLy achIeved 15

Children	and	young	people	should	know	what	to	do	if	they	are	not	happy	with	the	way	

they	are	being	treated	and	feel	that	their	complaint	will	be	listened	to	and	treated	seriously.		

Children	and	young	people	should	have	access	to	an	advocate	if	they	wish	and	the	Authority	

should	promote	the	advocacy	service.	They	should	receive	feedback	on	the	process	and	

outcome	of	their	complaint	and	support	in	coming	to	terms	with	the	decision.

Comparison	of	the	young	people	survey	results	in	2014	and	2015

LILAC	2014	recommendations

   Allow the Children in Care Council to review the issues that are raised with the complaints and 

advocacy team and use this information to inform their work to have an influence on the actions taken.

  Develop further ways of involving the children and young people in some form of campaign to 

raise awareness of this service in a variety of ways e.g. posters, postcards or flyers, or website. 

This would stimulate interest and explain the advocacy service better, perhaps raise the profile  

of advocates, the Independent Reviewing Officer and other relevant information.

  Complaints and advocacy issues should be brought to team meetings so that problems or 

issues do not reoccur and so that no one misses out on valuable information.

  Information on complaints and advocacy should be made available in languages that children 

and young people from minority ethnic backgrounds, and children with learning disabilities can 

understand or have utilised on their behalf.  

  A Peer Volunteer Mentoring project on advocacy would help children and young people to 

understand advocacy specifically and raise awareness generally.  

 We are unsure as to how far these recommendations have been implemented.

Question	 2014	 2015

Have	you	ever	seen	or	been	told	about	how	to	make	a	complaint	 88%	 92%
about	your	care?

Would	you	feel	safe	about	making	a	complaint	without	it	causing	 80%	 72%
problems	for	you?

Has	anyone	explained	to	what	an	advocate	does?	 70%	 53%

Has	anyone	told	you	how	to	contact	an	advocate	does?	 70%	 65%



FInally

16FInaLLy

fInALLY

A	National	Voice	would	like	to	thank	all	the	young	people,	staff	and	elected	members	who	

took	the	time	to	meet	with	us	and	to	complete	questionnaires.	Our	time	in	Kent	was	well	

organized	and	the	views	expressed	honest	and	constructive.	Good	luck	in	the	future.






	Agenda
	A2 Minutes of the meeting of this Panel held on 23 October 2015
	A3 Minutes of the meeting of the Kent Corporate Parenting Group held on 23 November 2015, and brief verbal update
	A2 - KCPG CIC Indicator Report - 2015-16 2nd Qtr
	Title Page
	Guidance Notes
	Scorecard
	Impact of UASC
	Review Timescales
	Review Participation
	SW for 12 Months
	Exclusion and Absence
	KS2 Reading and Writing
	KS2 Maths and GCSE
	Health Ass
	Dental
	IHA Ref
	3+ Moves
	Stability Length
	KCC Foster Care or Rel
	20 Miles
	Residential
	Adpt agreed at 2nd review
	Ave BLA and Placed
	Ave Days Agency Dec to PO
	Ceased to be Looked After
	Suitable Accom
	EET
	In Contact
	CIC Staffing
	IROs
	Blank


	B2 Regional Collaboration Meeting
	B3 Leading Improvements for Looked After Children assessment - LILAC
	B3 Appendix 1 - 535-LILAC-Kent-CC-Report-2015




